
AGENDA

CITY OF FALLON - CITY COUNCIL

55 West Williams Avenue

Fallen, Nevada

December 7,2020 - 9:00 a.m.

The Honorable City Council will meet in a regularly scheduled meeting on December 7, 2020 at
9:00 a.m. in the City Council Chambers, 55 West Williams Avenue, Fallon, Nevada.

Items on the agenda may be taken out of order. The Council may combine two or more agenda
items for consideration. The Council may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion
relating to an item on the agenda at any time. Unless otherwise allowed by the City Council, public
comments by an individual will be limited to three minutes.

1. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.

2. Certification of Compliance with Posting Requirements.

3. Public Comments: General in nature, not relative to any agenda items.
No action may be taken on a matter raised under this item imtil the matter has been
specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action will be taken. (For
discussion only)

4. Consideration and approval of Council meeting minutes for November 16,2020. (For
possible action)

5. Approval of Warrants: (For possible action)

A) Accounts Payable
B) Payroll
C) Customer Deposit

6. Introduction of Bill No. 785: An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Fallon,
Nevada, Designated as the "2020 Medium-Term Bond Ordinance;" Providing for the
Issuance by the City of its General Obligation (Limited Tax) Medium-Term Bond, Series
2020; Providing Covenants, Conditions, and Other Details Concerning the Bond, the
Project and General Tax Proceeds; Ratifying Action Previously Taken and Pertaining to
the Foregoing by the City and its Officers and Employees; Providing for Adoption as if an
Emergency Exists; and Providing Matters Relating Thereto. (For possible mtrodnction)

7. Public Hearing of Bill No. 785: An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Fallon,
Nevada, Designated as the "2020 Medium-Term Bond Ordinance;" Providing for the
Issuance by the City of its General Obligation (Limited Tax) Medium-Term Bond, Series
2020; Providing Covenants, Conditions, and Other Details Concerning the Bond, the
Project and General Tax Proceeds; Ratifying Action Previously Taken and Pertaining to



the Foregoing by the City and its Officers and Employees; Providing for Adoption as if an
Emergency Exists; and Providing Matters Relating Thereto. (For discussion only)

8. Consideration and possible adoption of Bill No. 785 as Ordinance No. 766: An Ordinance
of the City Coimcil of the City of Fallon, Nevada, Designated as the "2020 Medium-Term
Bond Ordinance;" Providing for the Issuance by the City of its General Obligation (Limited
Tax) Medium-Term Bond, Series 2020; Providing Covenants, Conditions, and Other
Details Concerning the Bond, the Project and General Tax Proceeds; Ratifying Action
Previously Taken and Pertaining to the Foregoing by the City and its Officers and
Employees; Providing for Adoption as if an Emergency Exists; and Providing Matters
Relating Thereto. (For possible action)

9. Public Comments (For discussion only)

10. Council and Staff Reports (For discussion only)

11. Executive Session (closed):

Discuss Litigation Matters (For discussion only) (NRS 241 et.seq.)
Negotiations with Operating Engineers Local Union No. 3 (For discussion only)
Negotiations with Fallon Peace Officers Association (For discussion only)

Pursuant to Governor Sisolak's Declaration of Emergency Directive 006 entered on March 22,
2020, and extended by Emergency Directive 016 entered on April 29, 2020, by Emergency
Directive 018 entered on May 7, 2020, by Emergency Directive 021 entered on May 28, 2020, by
Emergency Directive 026 entered on June 29, 2020 and by Emergency Directive 029 entered on
July 31, 2020, this agenda has been posted on or before 9:00 a.m. on December 2, 2020 at City
Hall, to the City's website (https://fallonnevada.gov) and to the State of Nevada public notice
website (https://notice.nv.gov/). Members of the public may request the supporting material for
this meeting by contacting Elsie M. Lee, Deputy City Clerk, at (775) 423-5104 or
elee@fallonnevada.aov. The supporting material for this meeting is also available to the public
on the City's website (https://fallonnevada.gov) and the State of Nevada public notice website
(https://notiee.nv.gov/).

Elsie M. Lee

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: Reasonable effort will be made to assist and

accommodate physically handicapped persons desiring to attend the meeting. Please call the City
Clerk's Office at 423-5104 in advance so that arrangements may be conveniently made.



December 7, 2020

Asrenda Item 4

Consideration and approval of Council meeting
minutes for November 16, 2020. (For possible
action)



MINUTES

CITY OF FALLON

55 West Williams Avenue

Fallon, Nevada
November 16,2020

The Honorable City Council met in a regularly scheduled Coimcil meeting on the above
date in the Council Chambers, 55 West Williams Avenue, Fallon, Nevada.

Present:

Mayor Ken Tedford
City Councilman, James D. Richardson
City Coimcilwoman, Kelly Frost
City Councilwoman, Karla Kent
Police Chief, Kevin Gehman ;
Chief of Staff^ Robert Erquiaga ; Ij;

The meeting was called to oridpr by Mayor Te^or^iatS^OO a.m.

Mayor Tedford led the Pledge df Ail^mance.

Mayor Tedford inquired if the' ̂ enda"^^ -^ poiited in compliance with NRS
requirements. "

Chief of Staff ̂ipuaga ad^ed that thi8|-a|ehda weis posted in compliance with Governor
Sisolak's Emergency l3ii|;^tives, |he agenda ahqlthe supporting materials were posted at City
Hall, on tlte Cipri§;Websiie||a|!d;;l|| Nevada's public notice website on or before 9:00
a.m. onNji^ttSliSi^ff020. " W

ftiiblic Commenfe?i|:-:,

Mayor Tedford inquire||| there v^re any public comments. He noted that comments are
to be general in bg^jre, not rel^^e to any agenda items. No action may be taken on a matter
raised under this iS&|yntil theimatter has been specifically included on an agenda as an item
upon which action wiM-^ |a^iSf

Mr. Geoff Knell of 26T Serpa Place stated that Jesus Christ is King; He is the lawgiver
and judge. He read Psalms%! He stated that he walks these streets with his dog, talks to people
on the street, and surveys the environment of the City of Fallon. There is so much evil in the
City, it is uncanny. People are threatening people's lives and doing foolish things. He praised
the stop sign instiled on Serpa Place; it is still not stopping it, but it has reduced it quite a bit. It
is the mindset of how our environment - our City - has become. We have Satan strongholds in
this City. We have witches and witchcraft. It is alive today - just hearing what people say - he
does not bring it up, they bring it up. It is just amazing. Psalm 5 says to rely on Him in your
decision making; rely on Him in all circumstances because we are seeing evil in the world today,
especially with the deception of our elections. Matthew 24 says that lawlessness shall abound.

November 16,2020 Fallon City Council Meeting



He sees people rolling through stop signs, no matter where he goes. People are angry and bitter.
In Matthew 24, Jesus says hearts will grow cold and he is seeing it today.

Mayor Tedford thanked Mr. Knell.

Approval of Council meeting minutes for August 3, 2020, September 8, 2020,
September 21,2020, October 5,2020, October 19,2020, and November 2,2020

Mayor Tedford inquired if there were any additions or corrections to the minutes for
August 3, 2020, September 8, 2020, September 21, 2020, October 5, 2020, October 19, 2020,
and November 2,2020.

No additions or corrections were noted.

Coimcilwoman Kent motioned to approve the Council meeting minutes for August 3,
2020, September 8, 2020, September 21, 2020, October 5, 2020, October 19, 2020, and
November 2,2020 as submitted, seconded by Couneilwoman I%^||:iand approved with a 3-0 vote
by the Council.

Approval of Warrants

A) Accounts Payable
B) Payroll ,
C) Customer Deposit

Mayor Tedford inspired if there were any comments regarding the accounts payable,
payroll and customer dep^iv^aants.

No commentsii^ not^|||: ''''life::
CouncilwomSil'feppst moti|&d to appiip the accounts payable, payroll and customer

deposit warrants and autl^itize the^^^r to sign||^ same; seconded by Councilman Richardson
and approved witha 3-0 -^1

.^I^ointment and possilSi||ipnflrmafimri:uf Dusty Casey to the City of Fallon Board
of Adjustment

Mayor Tedford stated tb^ it was Us honor today to present Dusty Casey to the Council
for confirmation io the Boardlilf' Adjustment. "Dusty Casey is a fourth generation Fallon
resident. He was raised on a i||§ch in Stillwater and graduated from Churchill Coimty High
School in 1996. He wint onllli earn a Bachelor of Science degree in Computer Information
Systems and a Master of Arts in Economics, both firom the University of Nevada, Reno. His
wife. Dr. Amanda Casey, if IlIso a Fallon native and a graduate fi-om UNR and the UNR School
of Medicine. They are currently raising 2 daughters, Sequoya and Lakota, and reside in Fallon.
After spending a decade solely in the private sector as an employee and entrepreneur in the fields
of construction and land development. Dusty now works in the public sector as well. He is a
founding board member of Oasis Academy, and the school's current Chief Financial Officer and
Athletic Director. He is also on the board of the Food Bank of Northern Nevada, the
Commission on School Funding for the State of Nevada, the president of the Fallon Youth
Basketball League, and a former volunteer reserve deputy at the Churchill Coimty Sheriffs
Office. Dusty is also the operations manager for his wife's medical practice, Casey Professional

November 16,2020 Fallon City Council Meeting



Health Service, PLLC, as well as a dedicated coach for youth sports in our community. It is with
great pleasure that 1 appoint Dusty Casey to the Board of Adjustment, and I bring him before the
Council for your consideration and confirmation."

Mayor Tedford inquired if the Council had any comments or questions.
No comments were noted.

Mayor Tedford inquired if there were any public comments or questions.
No comments were noted.

Councilwoman Kent motioned to confirm the appointment Dusty Casey to the City of
Fallon Board of Adjustment; seconded by Covmcihnan Richardson and approved with a 3-0 vote
by the Council.

At this time. Mayor Tedford administered the Oath of Office to Dusty Casey.

Consideration and possible approval of a professional services contract with Atkins
North America, Inc. for engineering desi^:aiili'hiddu^llf^ices for the Replacement
of Runway Edge Lights at the Fallon MliiPipal Airport in an amount not-to-exceed
Seventy Thousand Dollars ($70,000.00), of which the FAA share would he 93.75% or
Sixty-Five Thousand Six Hundred l^i^ly-Five Dollars ($65|i^i^0) and the City's
share would he 6.25% or Four Thousand Three Hundred Seventy-Five Dollars
($4,375.00)

Chief of Staff Erquiaga explained fije City has idenfified the replacement of the runway
edge lights at the Fallon Municipal A%ort jb our next capital improvement project. Like in
years past, we are asking the Council to ̂ prove AMns to move forward with the design and
bidding services. If approve^ this contract would get the project designed, we would make
application to the Fe<tecal Aviafion Administr^ion (FAA), an4 assuming that we are approved,
Atkins would take us through the actual bidding and award of a contract to a successfijl bidder.
As always, we advance the design money andnthen when our application is approved by the
FAA, we wnu^sbe reimbursed at the 93.75% Fi^j share once we started construction, which
typically xjqcurs in ̂  sumniCT. We had fiqpc4 to ^ little more this round, but the FAA is
imder ̂ |ie budget coh^^ts ahd|tlds is the prqject that they were willing to go forward with.
We are itting the Council to approve the contract so we can continue to improve the airport and
continue tdHesuccessful wil|i||^se FAilgrants.

MayorIpiford inquiredilifsthe CouiCil had any comments or questions.
Councilwoman Kent not^'that the FAA has been very good to the City. She asked if the

FAA would approve prqject|q5actually replace the lights in 2021 or was it a subject for when
we get to that point, ,

Chief of Staff Erqui^l noted that both the City and Atkins, our consultant, are in
commimications with the Fi^ as we submit proposed projects - typically on a 5-year scale -
where the FAA is involved in the conversation and essentially agrees that those would be
appropriate projects for the upcoming years. Then, when we get to this time of year, going into
the grant application timefirame, we communicate with them and they let us know how their
budget is looking and what they think they can approve. In the City's history with the FAA, they
have never gone back on that word, of telling us that this is the project that we can go forward
with. As long as we get the design to them and get it awarded in time, they typically approve
both the design and going forward with fimding for the project. The FAA is pretty well in the
mix by the time we get to this point, so we do not give them any surprises. Every once in a

November 16,2020 Fallon City Council Meeting



while, we get lucky and there is a little more money available. The Mayor has been good at that,
keeping projects on the shelf and ready to go, so if we get the word that there is additional
funding available, we can jump in line and bite off another project a little quicker than we had
anticipated. Atkins will do the design; they are very good at it. He was certain the FAA would
approve the design and that is to replace the lights.

Mayor Tedford stated that the key to what Chief of Staff Erquiaga said is tiiis: If your 5-
year plan is in order, the projects you have for a certain year are usually always granted. There
have been exceptions where it has been close because of federal money beginning to fall out, but
we seem to always get our projects funded. Our 5-year plan is firm enough so projects will not
slip out of place. Once you have a strong consultant, they taUfilp the FAA all the time so when
you get this far down the track, your project is usually a go. Chief of Staff Erquiaga is correct;
we are good about having projects on the shelf, so if they cdl and say they have some money
that another City did not use and ask if we have a projej^ ieady to go - we are able to say that we
do. We have had projects move up the list that w^. ft a 93l|||o match, these grants are too
good to let go.

Councilwoman Frost asked if the light^|pmld be upgraded fe EED lighting.
Chief of Staff Erquiaga replied afSrmal%e: LED offers both cost savings in the long run

and they are easier for the approaching pilots to
Councilman Richardson asked if we knew ari i|^gia|^imotmt for the dctual project.
Chief of Staff Erquiaga expl^ieiiliithat he had a zeroed-in estimate. We put it in

the 5-year plan, but we are working v^ iloew contact aWi|dns. so we are pushing the timeline
and keeping things on track. Our prior (^jotaliltt^y^dns letflfepursxie a different opportunity, so
we have been a bit scrambled, so he has hdt seen ailimdated nifliiber. hut he thought it would be
in the couple himdred thousimd dollar ran^ with the li^riug, cans, and wiring. We know that
the City's match is 6^% of whatever that maount turns out lo be. There is also a little hit of
hope, perhaps, that theiFAA would fund at 100% again. With bur CARES Act allocation, they
funded at 100%. There isi some talkofthat, hut it depends on what Congress gets done.

Mayofeledford inqiiired4TSieli|||^ any pqblic comments or questions.
Noj:iMffiiffitti^re note^. ®
;*i||tticilwoman motioned to appfiy^ia professional services contract with Atkins

North ftoeoca. Inc. for ehjmeerin^design and bidding services for the Replacement of Rimway
Edge Lights at the Fallon lllgucipal Ij^bport in an amount not-to-exceed Seventy Thousand
Dollars ($70.000.00), of which the FA]l®share would be 93.75% or Sixty-Five Thousand Six
Hundred Tweniylliye Dollars ($65,625.00) and the City's share would be 6.25% or Four
Thousand Three Eliidred Seventy-Five Dollars ($4,375.00); seconded by Councilwoman Frost
and approved with a 3-0 vpte by the Council.

Presentation of the Police Department Report for October 2020

Chief Gehman presented the October monthly report:
• We provided indoctrination lectures to newly stationed Navy personnel last month. One was

given by departing Detective Decker and the other was given by new Detective Goodrick.
• We participated in a drug take-back event at CVS Pharmacy that was coordinated with the

State of Nevada. The Chinchill County Sheriffs Office was collecting at Walgreens.
•  The Police Explorers served meals at Fallon Daily Bread.

November 16,2020 Fallon City Council Meeting



The School Resource Officers were active in the schools. They put together a video about
drug prevention, the dangers of drugs, and the negative consequences of peer pressure. They
showed this video to classes throughout the school.
VIPS donated 43 hours of their time in October. They contacted shut-in citizens and helped
with some administrative things around the ofSce.

Mayor Tedford inquired if the Council had any comments or questions.
No comments were noted.

Mayor Tedford thanked Chief Gehman for the report.

Public Comments

Mayor Tedford inquired if there were any public cpH^nts.
Mr. Geoff Knell of 261 Serpa Place stated 23 imprecatory prayers in the

Book of Psalms. He implored the Council to check them out,'adding that he had a list of the
numbers if they would like to have them.

Mayor Tedford thanked Mr. Knell.

Council and Staff Reports

Mayor Tedford inquired if th^pp? any Coundi|^'Staff reports.
Councilwoman Frost noted th^||i;j^is^^jpgress in Itesrack sealing of some of our streets.

She was happy to see it and was sure ci^gns Ij^ppy to ilelittoo.
Mayor Tedford advised that theiCoirtrac^glis = crack Ibialing right now, and due to

upcoming cold weath^» would letum in the spring to^ajply the slurry seal. The South Maine
Street project - whidi is the fij^fahase of 4[e downtown revitdization - has begun, as well as
the Front Street Reconstruction p||iject. A&K Earth Movers is the contractor on those two
projects. The D Street eleetrical upgrade was also just completed; PAR was the contractor on
that project

Executive SessiSp?.- ''iil.

Maybr Tedford tabled ISfe executive session, as it was not needed at this time.

Adjournment

There being no iil^ersjiijpness to come before the Council, Mayor Tedford adjourned the
meeting at 9:25 a.m.

Mayor Ken Tedford

Attest:
Sean C. Richardson, City Clerk-Treasurer

November 16,2020 Fallen City Council Meeting



7, 2020

Affenda Item 6

Introduction of Bill No. 785: An Ordinance of the City
Couneil of the City of Fallon, Nevada, Designated as the
"2020 Medium-Term Bond Ordinanee;" Providing for the
Issuance by the City of its General Obligation (Limited
Tax) Medium-Term Bond, Series 2020; Providing
Covenants, Conditions, and Other Details Concerning the
Bond, the Projeet and General Tax Proceeds; Ratifying
Aetion Previously Taken and Pertaining to the Foregoing
by the City and its Officers and Employees; Providing for
Adoption as if an Emergeney Exists; and Providing
Matters Relating Thereto. (For possible introduction)



CITY OF FALLON

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

Agenda Item No. (p

DATE SUBMITTED: November 30, 2020

AGENDA DATE REQUESTED: December 7, 2020

TO: The Honorable City Council

FROM: Robert Erquiaga, Chief of Staff
Sean Richardson, City Clerk/Treasurer

SUBJECT TITLE: Introduction of Bill No. 785: An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of
Fallon, Nevada, Designated as the "2020 Medium-Term Bond Ordinance;" Providing for the
Issuance by the City of its General Obligation (Limited Tax) Medium-Term Bond, Series 2020;
Providing Covenants, Conditions, and Other Details Concerning the Bond, the Project and
General Tax Proceeds; Ratifying Action Previously Taken and Pertaining to the Foregoing by
the City and its Officers and Employees; Providing for Adoption as if an Emergency Exists; and
Providing Matters Relating Thereto. (For possible introduction)

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED: (Check One)

(  ) Resolution (X) Ordinance
(  ) Formal Action/Motion ( ) Other

RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION: Introduction of Bill No. 785: An Ordinance of the

City Council of the City of Fallon, Nevada, Designated as the "2020 Medium-Term Bond
Ordinance;" Providing for the Issuance by the City of its General Obligation (Limited Tax)
Medium-Term Bond, Series 2020; Providing Covenants, Conditions, and Other Details
Concerning the Bond, the Project and General Tax Proceeds; Ratifying Action Previously Taken
and Pertaining to the Foregoing by the City and its Officers and Employees; Providing for
Adoption as if an Emergency Exists; and Providing Matters Relating Thereto.

DISCUSSION: None. The proposed Ordinance will be read by title to the City Council.

FISCAL IMPACT: Medium-Term Bonds in the aggregate principal amount not to exceed
$2,000,000

FUNDING SOURCE: Electric Enterprise Fund, Water Enterprise Fund, Sewer Enterprise Fund,
Sanitation Enterprise Fund, Landfill Enterprise Fund, Water Treatment Enterprise Fund, Airport
Fund and General Fund

PREPARED BY: Robert Erquiaga, Chief of Staff

TO BE PRESENTED BY: Robert Erquiaga and Sean Richardson



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

FALLON, NEVADA, DESIGNATED AS THE "2020 MEDIUM-
TERM BOND ORDINANCE;" PROVIDING FOR THE
ISSUANCE BY THE CITY OF ITS GENERAL OBLIGATION

(LIMITED TAX) MEDIUM-TERM BOND, SERIES 2020;
PROVIDING COVENANTS, CONDITIONS, AND OTHER
DETAILS CONCERNING THE BOND, THE PROJECT AND

GENERAL TAX PROCEEDS; RATIFYING ACTION
PREVIOUSLY TAKEN AND PERTAINING TO THE

FOREGOING BY THE CITY AND ITS vOFFICERS AND

EMPLOYEES; PROVIDING FOR ADOPTION AS IF AN
EMERGENCY EXISTS; AND PROVIDING MATTERS
RELATING THERETO.

WHEREAS, the City of Fallen in the State of Nevada (the "City" and the "State,"

respectively) is a political subdivision of the State duly organized and consolidated as a city

under the provisions of chapter 266 of the Nevada Revised Statutes ("NRS") and the general

laws of the State; and

WHEREAS, the City has previously executed and delivered a Federally Taxable

Lease/Purchase Agreement dated as of March 26, 2020 with Zions Bancorporation, N.A. (the

"Prior Lease Agreement") to finance the costs of a vacuum truck for use by the City; and

WHEREAS, the Prior Lease Agreement is subject to prepayment at the option of the

City on any date; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 350.087 to 350.095, inclusive (the "Note Act"), the City is

authorized to issue medium-term obligations to finance improvements to City Hall and the City's

Public Works Building, the construction of a new fixed base operator building at the City's

airport (collectively, the "Improvement Project") and to refinance the Prior Lease Agreement

(the "Refunding Project" and collectively with the Improvement Project, the "Project"); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Note Act, the City authorized to issue, as evidence thereof,

negotiable medium-term notes or bonds which shall not be paid in whole or in part from a levy

of a special tax exempt from the limitations on the levy of ad valorem taxes, but which shall be

paid from other legally available funds of the City (subject to certain Constitutional and statutory

tax limitations), which must mature not later than 10 years after the date of issuance and must



bear interest at a rate or rates which do not exceed by more than 3% the "Index of Twenty

Bonds" which was most recently published before bids for their purchase are received; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 350.087, the City Council of the City (the "Council")

determined to publish a notice (the "Notice"), of its intention to authorize and to issue medium-

term obligations in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $2,000,000, in a newspaper of

general circulation in the City and an affidavit of such publication is on file in the office of the

City Clerk (the "Clerk"); and

WHEREAS, the Council adopted by at least a two-thirds majority a resolution

authorizing medium-term obligations in the maximum principal amount of $2,000,000 to finance

the Project (the "Authorization Resolution") which contained a finding by the Council that the

public interest requires medium-term obligations and a statement of the facts upon which the

finding was based, which vote was taken at least 10 days after the publication of the Notice; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 350.089 and relevant provisions of the Nevada

Administrative Code, the Council caused a certified copy of the Authorization Resolution and

supporting documents to be submitted to the Executive Director of the Department of Taxation

of the State of Nevada (the "Department of Taxation") for his or her approval; and

WHEREAS, the City received the approval of the Department of Taxation for such

medium-term obligations, a copy of such approval being attached hereto as follows:

'  (Attach Approval of Department of Taxation)



STSVESISOLAK

Governor

JAMES DEVOLLD

Chair, Nevada Tax Commission
MELANIE YOUNG

Ereatlive Director

STATE OF NEVADA

DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION
Web Site; https./Ztax.nv.gov

1550 Co'lege Parkway, Suite 115
Carson City, Nevada 89706-7937

Phona: (7751 684-2000 Fax: (7751 684-2020

US VEGAS OFFICE
Grant Sawyer OH ce Building, SuitelBOO

555 E. Washington Avenue
Las Vegas. Nevada 89101

Phonn: (7021 486-2300 Fax: (702) 486-2373

RENO OFFICE

4600 Kietzke Lane

Building L, Suite 235
Reno, Nevada 89502
Phone: (775) 687-9999

Fax: (775) 688-1303

HENDERSON OFFICE

2550 Paseo Verde Parkway, Suite 180
Henderson, Nevada 89074

Phone: (702)486-2300
Fa*: (702) 486-3377

November 25, 2020

Sean Richardson

City Clerk Treasurer
City of Fallon
55 West Williams Avenue

Fallon, NV 89406

Re: City of Fallon
MTO - Medium-Term Obligation (Bonds)
2,000,000 for financing a new Airport FBO Building, Remodeling Public Works Building & City
Hall, and Refinancing Vacuum Truck

Dear Mr. Richardson;

The Department of Taxation has received a request from the City of Fallon for the approval of a
Medium-Term Obligation not to exceed $2,000,000. This medium-term obligation will be used to
finance improvements to City Hall and the City's Public Works Building, the construction of a new fixed
base operator building at the City's airport and refinancing certain outstanding obligations of the City.
This Medium-Term Obligation is to be repaid from the operating revenues generated from the City's
Electric, Water, Sewer, Sanitation, Landfill, Water Treatment and Airport Enterprise Funds and the
General Fund. The term for this obligation is not to exceed ten (10) years after the date of execution,
and the interest rate shall not exceed by more than 3 percent the "Index of Twenty Bonds" most
recently published in The Bond Buver" before bids are received or negotiated offer is accepted. The
annual interest rate is estimated to be 2.50%.

The request has been reviewed as required by NRS 350.089 and is APPROVED.

Pursuant to NRS 350.089, the approval must be recorded in the minutes of the governing board at the
next meeting. You are reminded the financing must be secured within eighteen months of receipt of this
approval.

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact Kellie Grahmann, Budget Analyst in the
Local Government Finance Section at (775) 684-2065 or at kQrahmann@tax.state.nv.us.

Sincerely,

Melanie Young
Executive Director

Nevada Department of Taxation



WHEREAS, the approval of the Department of Taxation as set forth in the preambles

hereof is hereby recorded in the minutes of the Council as required by NRS 350.089; and

WHEREAS, the City has not previously utilized any of the authority so approved by the

Department of Taxation; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Authorization Resolution, the Council ordered the medium-

term obligations to be offered for sale in the form of medium-term bonds and authorized the City

Clerk/Treasurer (the "Clerk/Treasurer") to arrange for the sale of such medium-term bonds

subject to, among other conditions, adoption by the City of this Ordinance specifying the bond

terms and details and approving their sale; and

WHEREAS, the Council hereby determines that the bond herein authorized to be issued

shall be designated the "City of Fallon, Nevada, General Obligation (Limited Tax) Medium-

Term Bond, Series 2020" in an aggregate principaT amount not to exceed $2,000,000 (the

"Bond"); and

WHEREAS, the Council has determined and hereby declares and determines that legally

available funds of the City will at least equal the amount required in each year for the payment of

interest on and the principal of the Bond; and - ,/

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 350.091, the Council has determined and hereby

determines that the maximum term of the Bond does not exceed the estimated useful life of the

Project financed with the proceeds of the Bond; and " ̂

WHEREAS, the Council has heretofore elected to and hereby determines to issue the

Bond in accordance with the provisions of NRS 350.500 through 350.720, and all laws

amendatory thereof, cited in NRS 350.500 by the short title "Local Government Securities Law"

(the "Bond Act"); and

WHEREAS, the Council hereby elects to have the provisions of NRS Chapter 348 (the

"Supplemental Bond Act") apply to the Bond; and

WHEREAS, the Council is not authorized to levy general ad valorem taxes (the

"General Taxes") to pay the principal of or interest on the Bond which are exempt from the

limitations of any statutes of the State; and

WHEREAS, any General Taxes levied for the purpose of paying principal or interest on

the Bond will be subject to the limitations contained in the Constitution and the statutes of the



State, including, without limitation, the limitations on General Taxes contained in NRS Sections

354.59811, 354.59813, 354.59815, 354.5982 and 361.453; and

WHEREAS, the Council is therefore authorized and empowered by the City Bond Law,

the Note Act, the approval of the Department of Taxation, and the Bond Act, without any further

preliminaries:

A. To issue and sell the City's Bond; and

B. To exercise the incidental powers provided in the Bond Act in connection

with the powers authorized therein or as otherwise expressly provided therein; and

WHEREAS, after a sale of the Bond pursuant to NRS 350,105 to 350.195, the

Clerk/Treasurer is hereby authorized to sell the Bond to the best bidder therefor (the

"Purchaser"), and accept a binding bid for the Bond; and

WHEREAS, the Bond is to bear interest at the rates or rates per annum pro^^d in the
bond purchase proposal submitted by the Purchaser (the "Bond Purchase Proposal") and

accepted by the Clerk/Treasurer, which rates must not exceed by more than 3% the Index of

Twenty Bonds most recently published in The Bond Buyer prior to the time bids were received

for the Bond, and are to be sold at a price equal to the principal amount thereof, plus accrued

interest to the date of delivery of the Bond, if any, less a discount not exceeding 9% of the

principal amount thereof or plus a premium, all as specified in a certificate dated on or after the

sale date of the Bond (the "Certificate of the Clerk/Treasurer"); and

WHEREAS, the Council has determined and hereby declares that each of the limitations

and other conditions to the issuance of the Bond in the City Bond Law, the Note Act, the Bond

Act, the Supplemental Bond Act, and in any other relevant act of the State or the Federal

Government, has been met; and pursuant to NRS 350.708 this determination of the Council that

the limitations in the Bond Act have been met shall be conclusive in the absence of fraud or

arbitrary or gross abuse of discretion; and

WHEREAS, the Council has determined and does hereby declare that each of the

limitations and other conditions to the issuance of the Bond in the Bond Act, and in any other

relevant act of the State or the Federal Government, has been met and pursuant to Section

350.708 of the Bond Act, this determination of the Council that the limitations in the Bond Act

have been met shall be conclusive in the absence of fraud or arbitrary or gross abuse of

discretion; and



WHEREAS, the Council has determined and does hereby declare:

A. This Ordinance pertains to the sale, issuance and payment of the Bond;

B. Such declaration shall be conclusive in the absence of fraud or gross abuse of

discretion in accordance with the provisions of Subsection 2 of NRS 350.579; and

C. This Ordinance may accordingly be adopted as if an emergency now exists by

an affirmative vote of all of the voting members of the Council (excluding from any such

computation any vacancy on the Council and any member thereof who may vote only to break a tie

vote), and this Ordinance may become effective at any time when an emerg^cy ordinance of the

City may go into effect. "^9^

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF fMlON DOES
ORDAIN: -.-pp'

Section 1. Short Title. This ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the "2020

Medium-Term Bond Ordinance" (herein the "Ordinance").

Section 2. Acceptance of Purchase Proposal. The Clerk/Treasurer is authorized to

accept the Bond Purchase Proposal submitted by the Purchaser and execute the Certificate of the

Clerk/Treasurer, subject to the terms and conditions specified herein.

Section 3. Ratification. All action heretofore taken by the Council and the officers

and employees of the City directed toward the Project and toward the issuance, sale and delivery

of the Bond is ratified, approved and confirmed.

4 ' Section 4. Necessitv of Project and Bond; Authorization of Project. It is necessary

arid in the best interests of the Council, its officers, and the inhabitants of the City, that the City

effect the Project and defray wholly or in part the cost thereof by the issuance of the Bond

therefor, and it is hereby so determined and declared. The Council hereby authorizes the Project.

Section 5. Authorization of Bond. For the purpose of providing funds to pay all or a

portion of the cost of the Project, the City shall issue the "City of Fallon, Nevada, General

Obligation (Limited Tax) Medium-Term Bond, Series 2020" in the aggregate principal amount

set forth in the Certificate of the Clerk/Treasurer (not to exceed $2,000,000). The Bond shall be

issued in the form substantially as set forth in Section 21 of this Ordinance.

Section 6. Ordinance to Constitute Contract. In consideration of the purchase and the

acceptance of the Bond by those who shall own the same from time to time, the provisions



hereof shall be deemed to be and shall constitute contracts between the City and the owners from

time to time of the Bond.

Section 7. General Obligation. All of the Bond, as to the principal thereof and the

interest thereon (the "Bond Requirements"), shall constitute a general obligation of the City,

which hereby pledges its full faith and credit for their payment.

Sections. Payment of the Bond. The Bond Requirements of the Bond shall be

payable from any monies legally available therefor, and provision for the payment of the Bond

Requirements of the Bond shall be made as provided in the Note Act, provided, however, that

General Taxes levied for the purpose of paying the principal of or interest on the Bond shall be

subject to the limitations contained in the Constitution and statutes of the State, including,

without limitation, the limitations on the levy of General Taxes imposed by NRS 354.59811,

354.59813, 354.59815, 354.5982 and 361.453. The City is not authorized to levy General Taxes

exempt from the limitations of any of said statutes to pay the Bond Requirements of the Bond.

The City hereby irrevocably covenants with the registered owner of the Bond from time to time

that it will make sufficient provisions annually in its budget to pay the Bond Requirements of the

Bond, when due.

Section 9. Limitations upon Security. The payment of the Bond is not secured by an

encumbrance, mortgage, or other pledge of property of the City, except for the proceeds of

General Taxes and any other moneys pledged for the payment of the Bond. No property of the

City, subject to such exception, shall be liable to be forfeited or taken in payment of the Bond.

Section 10. No Recourse Against Officers and Agents. No recourse shall be had for

the payment of the Bond Requirements of the Bond or for any claim based thereon or otherwise

upon this Ordinance or any other instrument relating thereto, against any individual member of

the Council or any officer or other agent of the Council or City, past, present or future, either

directly or indirectly through the Council or the City, or otherwise, whether by virtue of any

constitution, statute or rule of law, or by the enforcement of a penalty or otherwise, all such

liability, if any, being by the acceptance of the Bond and as a part of the consideration of its

issuance specially waived and released.

Section 11. Bond Details. The Bond shall be issued in fully registered form, i.e.,

registered as to both principal and interest, in compliance with Section 149 of the Tax Code, and

the regulations of the Secretary of the Treasury thereunder. The Bond shall be dated as of the



date of delivery of the Bond and shall be issued as a single bond in the aggregate principal

amount thereof. The Bond shall bear interest from its date until its maturity date at the rate set

forth in the Certificate of the Clerk/Treasurer, calculated on the basis of a 360-day year, payable

semiannually on March 1 and September 1 of each year commencing on the March 1, or

September 1 first occurring which is at least 45 days after the date of delivery of the Bond;

provided that a Bond which is reissued upon transfer, exchange or other replacement shall bear

interest at the rate set forth in the Certificate of the Clerk/Treasurer from the most recent interest

payment date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, or if no interest has been paid,

from the date of the Bond. The Bond shall mature in each of the designated amounts of principal

and designated dates as set forth in the Certificate of the Clerk/Treasurer.

The principal of any Bond shall be payable to the registered owner thereof as shown on

the registration records kept by the City Treasurer, as "Registrar" upon maturity thereof and

upon presentation and surrender at the office of the City Treasurer, as "Paying Agent;" provided,

however, that such presentation and surrender requirement shall only apply on the final maturity

date of the Bond and shall not apply to mandatory sinking fund redemption payments. If any

Bond shall not be paid upon such presentation and surrender at or after maturity, it shall continue

to draw interest at the interest rate borne by said Bond until the principal thereof is paid in full.

Payment of interest on any Bond shall be made to the registered owner thereof by check or draft

mailed by the Paying Agent, on each interest payment date (or, if such interest payment date is

not a business day, on the next succeeding business day), to the registered owner thereof, at his

or her address as shown on the registration records kept by the Registrar as of the close of

business on the 15th day of the calendar month next preceding each interest payment date (other

than a special interest payment date hereafter fixed for payment of defaulted interest) (the

"Regular Record Date"). Any such interest not so timely paid or duly provided for shall cease to

be payable to the owner thereof as shown on the registration records of the Registrar as of the

close of business on the Regular Record Date and shall be payable to the owner thereof, at his or

her address, as shown on the registration records of the Registrar as of the close of business on a

date fixed to determine the names and addresses of owners for the purpose of paying defaulted

interest (the "Special Record Date"). Such Special Record Date shall be fixed by the Paying

Agent whenever moneys become available for payment of the defaulted interest, and notice of

the Special Record Date shall be given to the owners of the Bond not less than 10 days prior



thereto by first-class mail to each such owner as shown on the Registrar's registration records as

of a date selected by the Registrar, stating the date of the Special Record Date and the date fixed

for the payment of such defaulted interest. The Paying Agent may make payments of interest on

any Bond by such alternative means as may be mutually agreed to between the owner of such

Bond and the Paying Agent. All such payments shall be made in lawful money of the United

States of America without deduction for any service charges of the Paying Agent or Registrar.

Section 12. Prior Redemption.

A. Optional Prior Redemption. The Bond, or portions thereof ($1,000 or any

integral multiple), will be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the City, on

and after the dates set forth in the Certificate of the Clerk/Treasurer, in whole or. in part at any

time, at a price equal to the principal amount of the Bond, or portion thereof, so redeemed,

accrued interest thereon to the redemption date, and a premium, if any, computed in accordance

with the schedule set forth in the Certificate of the Clerk/Treasurer.

B. Partial Redemption. If only a portion of the Bond is redeemed pursuant to

this Section 12, the Registrar shall, without charge to the owner of such Bond, authenticate and

issue a replacement Bond for the unredeemed portion thereof. The Paying Agent shall select the

portion of the Bond to be redeemed by lot at such times as directed by the City (but at least 30

days prior to the redemption date).

C. Mandatory Redemption. The Bond will be subject to mandatory sinking

fiind redemption on the dates designated in the Certificate of the Clerk/Treasurer, if any, at a

redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof and accrued interest to the

redemption date. As and for a sinking fund for the redemption of the Bond, there shall be

deposited into the Medium-Term Debt Service Account, hereinafter created, on or before the

dates set forth in the Certificate of the Clerk/Treasurer, a sum which, together with other moneys

available therein, is sufficient to redeem (after credit is provided below) on the dates set forth in

the Certificate of the Clerk/Treasurer, the principal amounts of the Bond as set forth in the

Certificate of the Clerk/Treasurer.

At the option of the City to be exercised by delivery of a written certificate to the

Registrar not less than sixty days next preceding any sinking fund redemption date, it may

(i) deliver to the Registrar for cancellation the Bond or portions thereof ($1,000 or any integral

multiple thereof) in an aggregate principal amount desired by the City or, (ii) specify a principal



amount of the Bond or portions thereof ($1,000 or any integral multiple thereof) which prior to

said date have been redeemed (otherwise than through the operation of the sinking fund) and

canceled by the Registrar and not theretofore applied as a credit against any sinking fund

redemption obligation. The Bond or portion thereof so delivered or previously redeemed shall

be credited by the Registrar at 100% of the principal amount thereof against the obligation of the

City on the sinking fund redemption dates and any excess shall be so credited against future

sinking fund redemption obligations in such manner as the City determines. In the event the City

shall avail itself of the provisions of clause (i) of the first sentence of this paragraph, the

certificate required by the first sentence of this paragraph shall be accompanied by the Bond or

portions thereof to be canceled.

D. Redemption Notice. Unless waived by any owner of the Bond to be

redeemed, official notice of prior redemption shall be given by the Registrar on direction of the

City, by first-class mail to the registered owner of the Bond or part of which is to be redeemed at

the address shown on the records of the Registrar, at least 30 days and not more than 60 days

prior to the date fixed for redemption. Failure to give such notice to the registered owner of the

Bond, or any defect therein, shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of

any other Bond. All such notices of redemption shall be dated and shall state:

i. the redemption date,

ii. the redemption prices,

■  ill. if less than all of the outstanding Bond is to be redeemed,

the identification (and, in the case of partial redemption, the principal amount) of the Bond to be

redeenied,

rUr that on the redemption date the redemption price will

become aue and payable upon the Bond or portion thereof called for redemption, and that

interest thereon shall cease to accrue from and after said date, and

V. the place where the Bond is to be surrendered for payment

of the redemption price, which place of payment shall be the office of the Paying Agent.

The notice of redemption having been given as aforesaid, such Bond or portion of Bond

so to be redeemed shall, on the redemption date, become due and payable at the redemption price

therein specified, and from and after such date (unless the City shall default in the payment of the

redemption price) such Bond or portion of Bond shall cease to bear interest. Upon surrender of



such Bond for redemption in accordance with said notice, such Bond shall be paid by the Paying

Agent at the redemption price. Installments of interest due prior to the redemption date and, if

the redemption date is an interest payment date, on the redemption date shall be payable as

herein provided for payment of interest. Accrued interest due on any Bond which is called for

prior redemption on a date which is not an interest payment date will be paid at the time the

principal of such Bond is paid. Upon surrender for any partial redemption of any Bond, there

shall be prepared for the registered owner a new Bond of the same maturity in the amount of the

unpaid principal. Any Bond which has been redeemed shall be canceled and destroyed by the

Registrar and shall not be reissued. A certificate by the Registrar that notice of redemption has

been given as provided in this Section shall be conclusive as against all parties; and no owner

whose Bond is called for redemption or any other holder of any Bond or any other person may

object thereto or may object to the cessation of interest on the redemption date on the ground that

he failed actually to receive or see such notice of call and redemption.

Notwithstanding the provisions of this Section, any notice of redemption may contain a

statement that the redemption is conditioned upon the receipt by the Paying Agent of funds on or

before the date fixed for redemption sufficient to pay the redemption price of the Bond so called

for redemption, and that if such funds are not available, such redemption shall be cancelled by

written notice to the owner of the Bond called for redemption in the same manner as the original

redemption notice was mailed.

Section 13., Negotiabilitv. Subject to the registration provisions herein provided, the

Bond shall be fully negotiable within the meaning of and for the purposes of the Uniform

Commercial Code - Investment Securities and each owner shall possess all rights enjoyed by

holders of negotiable instruments under the Uniform Commercial Code - Investment Securities.

Section 14. Registration. Transfer, and Exchange of Bond.

' f , A. Records for the registration and transfer of the Bond shall be kept

by the Registrar. Upon the surrender of any Bond at the Registrar, duly endorsed for transfer or

accompanied by an assignment in form satisfactory to the Registrar duly executed by the owner

or his attorney duly authorized in writing, the Registrar shall authenticate and deliver in the name

of the transferee or transferees a new Bond of a like principal amount and of the same maturity,

bearing a number not previously assigned. Any Bond may be exchanged at the Registrar for an

equal aggregate principal amount of Bond, as provided in Section 11 hereof. The Registrar shall



authenticate and deliver a Bond which the owner making the exchange is entitled to receive,

bearing a number or numbers not previously assigned. Such transfers and exchanges of any

Bond shall be without charge to the owner or any transferee, but the Registrar shall require the

payment by the owner of any Bond requesting exchange or transfer, of any tax or other

governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or transfer.

B. The person in whose name the Bond shall be registered on the

registration records kept by the Registrar shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner

thereof for the purpose of payment and for all other purposes (except to the extent otherwise

provided in Section 11 hereof with respect to interest payments); and payment of or on account

of either principal or interest on any Bond shall be made only to or upon the written order of the

owner thereof or his legal representative. All such payments shall be valid and effectual to

discharge the liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.

C. If any Bond shall be lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated, the

Registrar shall, upon receipt of such evidence, information or indemnity relating thereto as it or

the City may reasonably require, and upon payment of all expenses in connection therewith,

authenticate and deliver a replacement Bond of a like aggregate principal amount, bearing a

number or numbers not previously assigned. If such lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated Bond

shall have matured or shall have been called for redemption, the Registrar may direct that such

Bond be paid by the Paying Agent in lieu of replacement.

D. Whenever any Bond shall be surrendered to the Paying Agent upon

payment thereof, or to the Registrar for transfer, exchange or replacement as provided herein,

siich Bond shall be promptly canceled by the Paying Agent or Registrar, and counterparts of a

certificate of such cancellation shall be furnished by the Paying Agent or Registrar to the

Council, upon request.

E. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this

Ordinance, the Bond may only be transferred in whole to a new owner who is: (i) an affiliate of

the original Purchaser of the Bonds; (ii) a "Bank" as defined in Section 3(a)(2) of the Securities

Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"); (iii) an "Accredited Investor" as defined in

Regulation D under the Securities Act; or (iv) a "Qualified Institutional Buyer" as defined in

Rule 144A under the Securities Act.



Section 15. [RESERVED].

Section 16. Execution and Authentication.

A. Prior to the execution of any Bond by facsimile signature and

pursuant to NRS 350.638, to the act known as the Uniform Facsimile Signatures of Public

Officials Act, cited as Chapter 351, NRS, and to the Supplemental Bond Act, the Mayor, and the

City Clerk/Treasurer each shall file with the Secretary of State of Nevada his or her manual

signature certified by him or her under oath.

B. The Bond shall be signed and executed in the name of and on

behalf of the City with the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor, shall be countersigned

and executed with the manual or facsimile signature of the City Treasurer, and shall be

countersigned, subscribed, and executed with the manual or facsimile signature of the City Clerk.

C. No Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose unless the

certificate of authentication thereon, substantially in the form hereinafter provided, has been duly

manually executed by the Registrar. By authenticating the Bond initially delivered pursuant to

this Ordinance, the Registrar shall be deemed to have assented to all of the provisions of this

Ordinance. - .

D. lV""fhe Mayor, the City Treasurer and the Clerk are hereby authorized

and directed to prepare and to execute the Bond as herein provided.

Section 17. Use of Predecessor's Signature. The Bond bearing the signatures of the

officers in office at the time of their execution shall be valid and binding obligations of the City,

notwithstanding that before their delivery any or all of the persons who executed them shall have

ceased to fill their respective offices. The Mayor, and the City Clerk/Treasurer, at the time of the

execution of a signature certificate relating to the Bond, may each adopt as and for his or her

own facsimile signature, the facsimile signature of his or her predecessor in office if such

facsimile signature appears upon the Bond.

Section 18. Incontestable Recital. Pursuant to NRS 350.628, the Bond shall contain a

recital that they are issued pursuant to the Bond Act, which recital shall be conclusive evidence

of the validity of the Bond and the regularity of its issuance.



Section 19. State Tax Exemption. Pursuant to NRS 350.710, the Bond, its transfer and

the income therefrom shall forever be and remain free and exempt from taxation by the State or

any subdivision thereof, except for the tax on estates imposed pursuant to NRS Chapter 375A

and the tax on generation skipping transfers imposed pursuant to NRS Chapter 375B.

Section 20. Bond Deliverv. After registration by the Registrar and after their

execution and authentication as provided herein, the Registrar shall cause the Bond to he

delivered to the Purchaser, upon payment being made in accordance with the terms of their sale.

Section 21. Bond Form. Subject to the provisions of this Ordinance, the Bond shall be

in substantially the following form, with such omissions, insertions, endorsements, and

variations as may be required by the circumstances, be required or permitted by this Ordinance,

or be consistent with this Ordinance and necessary or appropriate to conform to the rules and

requirements of any governmental authority or an> usage or requirement of law with respect

thereto:

13



(Form of Bond)

THE REGISTERED OWNER OF THIS BOND ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT

THIS BOND MAY ONLY BE TRANSFERRED TO A NEW OWNER WHO IS: (I) AN
AFFILIATE OF THE ORIGINAL PURCHASER OF THIS BOND; (H) A "BANK" AS
DEFINED IN SECTION 3(A)(2) OF THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED
(THE "SECURITIES ACT"); (HI) AN "ACCREDITED INVESTOR" AS DEFINED IN
REGULATION D UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT; OR (IV) A "QUALIFIED
INSTITUTIONAL BUYER" AS DEFINED IN RULE 144A UNDER THE SECURITIES

ACT.

TRANSFER OF THIS BOND OTHER THAN BY REGISTRATION IS NOT EFFECTIVE

CITY OF FALLON, NEVADA

GENERAL OBLIGATION (LIMITED TAX)

MEDIUM-TERM BOND

SERIES 2020 ^

Interest Rate

_% per annum

REGISTERED OWNER^

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:

Maturity Date

iMarch 1; ■.

Dated As of

, 2020

DOLLARS

The City of Fallon, in the County of Churchill and the State of Nevada (the "City," the

"County," and the "State," respectively) for value received, hereby acknowledges itself to be

indebted and promises to pay to the registered owner specified above, or registered assigns, the

principal amount specified above, on the maturity date specified above (unless called for earlier

redemption), and to pay interest thereon on March 1 and September 1 of each year, commencing

on 1, 2021, at the interest rate per annum specified above, until the principal is paid or

payment has been provided for or, if such payment date is not a business day, on the next

succeeding business day. This Bond shall bear interest from the most recent interest payment

date to which interest has been paid or, if no interest has been paid, from the date of the initial

delivery of this Bond (the "Bond"). The principal of this Bond is payable upon presentation and

surrender hereof at the office of the City's paying agent for the Bond or any successor (the

"Paying Agent"), presently the City Clerk/Treasurer in Fallon, Nevada who is also now aeting as

the City's Registrar for the Bond (the "Registrar"); provided, however, that such presentation



and surrender requirement shall only apply on the final maturity date of the Bond and shall not

apply to mandatory sinking fund redemption payments. Interest on this Bond will be paid on

each interest payment date (or, if such date is not a business day, on the next succeeding business

day) by check or draft mailed to the person in whose name this Bond or any predecessor bond is

registered (the "registered owner") in the registration records of the City maintained by the

Registrar, at the address appearing thereon, as of the close of business on the 15th day of the

calendar month next preceding such interest payment date (the "Regular Record Date"). Any

such interest not so timely paid or duly provided for shall cease to be payable to the person who

is the registered owner as of the close of business on the Regular Record Date and shall be

payable to the person who is the registered owner as of the close of business on a special record

date for the payment of any defaulted interest (the "Special Record Date"). Such Special Record

Date shall be fixed by the Registrar whenever moneys become available for payment of the

defaulted interest, and notice of the Special Record Date shall be given to the registered owner

not less than ten (10) days prior thereto. Alternative means of payment of interest may be used if

mutually agreed to by the registered owner and the Paying Agent, as provided in the ordinance of

the City Council of the City (the "Council") authorizing the issuance of the Bond and designated

in Section 1 thereof as the "2020 Medium-Term Bond Ordinance," duly adopted by the Council

(the "Ordinance"). All such payments shall be made in lawful money of the United States of

America without deduction for any service charges of the Paying Agent or Registrar. If this

Bond is not paid upon presentation at its maturity, interest at the rate specified above shall

continue to be borne hereby until the principal hereof is discharged as provided in the Ordinance.

This Bond is issued by the City upon its behalf and upon the credit thereof, for the

purpose of financing all or a portion of the cost of the Project as set forth in the Ordinance, under

the authority of and in full compliance with the Constitution and laws of the State, and pursuant

to the Ordinance.

The Bond, as to the principal thereof and the interest thereon (the "Bond Requirements"),

shall be payable from any moneys of the City legally available for the purpose of making such

payment and the full faith and credit of the City are hereby irrevocably pledged for making such

payment. Provision for the payment of the Bond shall be made as provided in NRS 350.093 and

350.095, provided, however, that ad valorem taxes levied for the purpose of paying the principal

of and interest on the Bond are subject to the limitations contained in the Constitution and the



statutes of the State, including, without limitation, the limitations on ad valorem taxes contained

in NRS 354.59811, 354.5913, 354.59815, 354.5982 and 361.453. The City is not authorized to

levy ad valorem taxes to pay the principal of or interest on the Bond exempt from the limitations

of any such statutes, but the City has covenanted in the Ordinance to make sufficient provision

annually in its budget to pay the Bond Requirements of the Bond, when due.

The City covenants and agrees with the Registered Owner of this Bond and with each and

every person who may become the Registered Owner hereof that it will keep and will perform all

of the covenants of the Ordinance.

The Bond is subject to [optional redemption and] mandatory sinking fund redemption as

set forth in the Ordinance and the Certificate of the Clerk/Treasurer.

No transfer of this Bond shall be valid unless made on the registration records maintained

at the principal office of the Registrar by the registered owner or his or her attorney duly

authorized in writing.

This Bond is not transferable or exchangeable, except as set forth in the Bond Ordinance.

No recourse shall be had for the payment of the Bond Requirements of this Bond or for

any claim based thereon or otherwise in respect to the Ordinance or other instrument pertaining

thereto against any individual member of the Council, or any officer or other agent of the City,

past, present, or future, either directly or indirectly through the Council or otherwise, whether by

virtue of any constitution, statute or rule of law, or by the enforcement of any penalty or

otherwise, all such liability, if any, being by the acceptance of this Bond and as a part of the

consideration of its issuance specially waived and released.

It is hereby certified, recited, declared and warranted that all actions required to be taken

prior 10 the issuance hereof have been had and taken by the City; that the issuance of the Bond

has been approved by the Executive Director of the Department of Taxation of the State of

Nevada as required by the NRS 350.087 to 350.095, inclusive, and that the principal of the Bond,

when added to other City indebtedness, does not exceed the limits on indebtedness of the City

provided in the Constitution and statutes of the State.

This Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit under the Ordinance, or be valid or

obligatory for any purpose until the Registrar shall have manually signed the certificate of

authentication hereon.



[The City has designated the Bond as a "qualified tax-exempt obligation within the

meaning of Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City Council of the City of Fallon, Nevada, has caused

this Bond to be executed in the name and on behalf of the City with the manual or facsimile

signature of the Mayor, to be attested, signed and executed with a manual or facsimile signature

of the City Clerk, has caused a manual or facsimile impression of the seal of the City to be

affixed hereon, and has caused this Bond to be countersigned with the manual or facsimile

signature of the City Treasurer, all as of , 2020. '

CITY OF FALLON, NEVAD^.

tanual or Facsimile Sie^Bre^
Mayor

(MANUAL OR FACSIMILE SEAL)

Attest:

Manual or Facsimile Si

City Clerk

V

or Facsimile Signature!

[End ofFprm of Bond)



(Form of Registrar's Certificate of Authentication for Bond)

Date of authentication

and registration

This is the Bond described in the within-mentioned Ordinance, and this Bond has been

duly registered on the registration records kept by the undersigned as Registrar for such Bond.

THE CITY OF FALLON TREASURER

as Registrar

(Manual SignatureK^>-
,, Authorized Officer

18



(Form of Registration Panel)

The within Bond is registered in the office of the Registrar, in the name of the last
owner listed below, and the principal amount of the Bond and interest thereon shall be payable only
to such owner, all in accordance with the within-mentioned Ordinance.

Signature of
Registrar

Name of

Registered Owner

Date of

Registration



(Form of Prepayment Panel)

The following installments of principal (or portions thereof) of this Bond have been
prepaid by the City of Fallon, Nevada, in accordance with the terms of the within-mentioned
Ordinance.

Due Date of

Installments

Date of (or portions
Prepayment thereof)

Principal
Amount Signature of
Prepaid Paving Agent

20



(Form of Assignment for Bond)

For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto the within

Bond and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints attorney, to

transfer the same on the records kept for registration of the within Bond, with full power of

substitution in the premises. .

Dated:

Signature Guaranteed:

Name and address of transferee:
Social Security or other tax l£ 4
identification number of

transferee:

NOTE: The signature to this Assignment must correspond with the name as written on the face
of the within Bond in every particular, without alteration or enlargement or any change
whatsoever. Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an eligible guarantor institution as defined in 17
CFR § 240.17Ad-15(a)(2).

NOTICE: TRANSFER FEES MUST BE PAID TO THE REGISTRAR IN ORDER TO

TRANSFER OR EXCHANGE THIS BOND AS PROVIDED IN THE WITHIN-MENTIONED

ORDINANCE.



Section 22. Use of Bond Proceeds. A portion of the proceeds realized from the sale of

the Bond shall be used to effect the Refunding Project. The remaining proceeds realized from

the sale of the Bond shall be deposited in a special account hereby created and designated as the

"City of Fallon, Medium-Term, Series 2020, Acquisition Account" (the "Acquisition Account")

to be held by the City. Moneys in the Acquisition Account shall be used solely to defray wholly

or in part the cost of the Project including, without limitation, as provided in NRS 350.516, all

costs of issuing the Bond, and the costs of rebates to the United States under Section 148 of the

Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Tax Code"), which the Council hereby

determines are necessary and desirable and pertain to the Project. After the Project is complete

and after all expenses have been paid or adequate provision therefor is made, pursuant to NRS

350.650, any imexpended balance of Bond proceeds (or, unless otherwise required by law, any

other moneys) remaining in the Acquisition Account shall be deposited into the Medium-Term

Debt Service Account, hereinafter created, to be used to pay the principal of and interest on the

Bond.

Section 23. Permitted Investments. Any moneys in any account designated in this

Ordinance, and not needed for immediate use, may be invested or reinvested in any investments

permitted under the laws of the State. For the purpose of any such investment or reinvestment,

the securities shall be deemed to mature at the earliest date on which the obligor is, on demand,

obligated to pay a fixed sum in discharge of the whole of such obligations.

Section 24. Use of Investment Gain. Pursuant to NRS 350.658, any gain from any

investment and any reinvestment of any proceeds of the Bond shall be deposited promptly upon

the peceipt of such gain at any time or from time to time into the Acquisition Account to defray,

in part, the cost of the Project or, if adequate provision has been made for the Projeet, into the

Medium-Term Debt Service Account, hereinafter created, for the respective payment of the

principal of or interest on the Bond or any combination thereof. As provided in Section 28

hereof, any annual General Taxes for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Bond

levied after sueh deposits of any sueh investment or reinvestment gain, may be diminished to the

extent of the availability of such deposit for the payment of such principal or interest.

Section 25. Completion of Project. The City, with the proceeds derived from the sale

of the Bond, shall proceed to eomplete the Project without delay and with due diligence to the

best of the City's ability, as hereinabove provided.



Section 26. Prevention of Bond Default. Subject to the provisions of this Ordinance,

the Clerk/Treasurer shall use any Bond proceeds credited to the Acquisition Account, without

further order or warrant, to pay the Bond Requirements of the Bond as the same become due

whenever and to the extent moneys otherwise available therefor are insufficient for that purpose,

unless such Bond proceeds shall be needed to defray obligations accrued and to accrue under any

contracts then existing and pertaining to the Project. The Clerk/Treasurer shall promptly notify

the Council of any such use.

Section 27. Purchaser Not Responsible. The validity of the Bond shall not be

dependent on nor be affected by the validity or regularity of any proceedings relating to the

Project, or any part thereof, or to the completion of the Project. The owner of any Bond shall in

no manner be responsible for the application or disposal by the City or by any of its officers,

agents, and employees of the moneys derived from the sale of the Bond or of any otho^moneys

herein designated.

Section 28. General Tax Levies. Pursuant to NRS 350.596, any sums coming due on

the Bond at any time when there are not on hand in the Medium-Term Debt Service Account

sufficient funds to pay same shall be promptly paid when due out of the Acquisition Account or

out of a general fund of the City or out of any other funds that may be available for such purpose,

including, without limitation, any proceeds of General Taxes legally available therefor. For the

purpose of repaying any moneys so paid from any such fund or funds (other than any moneys

available without replacement for the payment of such Bond Requirements on other than a

temporary basis), and for the purpose of creating funds for the payment of the Bond

Requirements, there is hereby created a separate account designated as the "City of Fallon,

Nevada, General Obligation (Limited Tax) Medium-Term Bond, Series 2020, Medium-Term

Debt Service Account" (the "Medium-Term Debt Service Account"). Pursuant to NRS 350.592,

350.594, 350.093 and 350.095, except to the extent other funds are legally available therefor,

there shall be duly levied immediately after the issuance of the Bond and armually thereafter,

until all of the Bond Requirements shall have been fully paid, satisfied and discharged, a General

Tax on all property, both real and personal, subject to taxation within the boundaries of the City,

including the net proceeds of mines, fully sufficient to reimburse such fund or funds for any such

amounts temporarily advanced to pay such initial installment of interest, and to pay the interest

on the Bond becoming due after such initial installment, and to pay and retire the Bond as they



thereafter become due at maturity as herein provided, after there are made due allowances for

probable delinquencies. The proceeds of such annual levies shall be duly credited to the

Medium-Term Debt Service Account for the payment of such Bond Requirements. In the

preparation of the annual budget or appropriation resolution or ordinance for the City, the

Council shall first make proper provisions through the levy of sufficient General Taxes for the

payment of the interest on and the retirement of the principal of the bonded indebtedness of the

City, including, without limitation, the Bond, subject to the limitation imposed by NRS

354.59811, 354.59813, 354.59815, 354.5982 and 361.453, and Section2, Art. 10, State

Constitution, and the amount of money necessary for this purpose shall be a first charge against

all such revenues received by the City. , "I i;

Section 29. Priorities for Bond. As provided in NRS 361.463, in any year in which

the total General Taxes levied against the property in the City by all overlapping units within the

boundaries of the City exceeds the limitations imposed by NRS 361.453, 354.59811, 354.59813

and 354.5982 or a lesser or greater amount fixed by the State Board of Examiners in any fiscal

year, and it shall become necessary by reason thereof to reduce the levies made by any and all

such units, the reductions so made shall be in General Taxes levied by the City for purposes

other than the payment of Bond Requirements of the Bond and other bonded indebtedness of the

City including interest thereon. The General Taxes levied for the payment of such bonded

indebtedness and the interest thereon shall always enjoy a priority over General Taxes levied by

the City fof 'all other purposes where reduction is necessary in order to comply with the

limitation of NRS 361.453, 354.59811, 354.59813 and 354.5982.

Section 30. Correlation of Levies. Such General Taxes shall be levied and collected in

the same manner and at the same time as other taxes are levied and collected, and the proceeds

thereof for the Bond shall be kept in the Medium-Term Debt Service Account, which shall be

used for no other purpose than the payment of principal and interest, respectively, as the same

fall due.

Section 31. Use of General Fund. Any sums becoming due on the Bond at any time

when there are on hand from such General Taxes (and any other available moneys) insufficient

ftmds to pay the same shall be promptly paid when due from general funds on hand belonging to

the City, reimbursement to be made for such general funds in the amounts so advanced when the

General Taxes herein provided for have been collected, pursuant to NRS 350.596.



Section 32. Use of Other Funds. Nothing in this Ordinance prevents the City from

applying any funds (other than General Taxes) that may be available for that purpose to the

payment of the Bond Requirements as the same, respectively, mature, and upon such payments,

the levy or levies herein provided may thereupon to that extent be diminished, pursuant to NRS

350.598.

Section 33. Legislative Duties. In accordance with NRS 350.592, it shall be the duty

of the Council annually, at the time and in the manner provided by law for levying other General

Taxes of the City, if such action shall be necessary to effectuate the provisions of this Ordinance,

to ratify and carry out the provisions hereof with reference to the levy and collection of General

Taxes; and the Council shall require the officers of the City to levy, extend and collect such

General Taxes in the manner provided by law for the purpose of creating funds for the payment

of the principal of the Bond and the interest thereon. Such General Taxes, when collected shall

be kept for and applied only to the payment of the principal of and the interest on the Bond as

hereinbefore specified.

Section 34. Appropriation of General Taxes. In accordance with NRS 350.602, there

is hereby specially appropriated the proceeds of such General Taxes to the payment of such

principal and interest: and such appropriations will not he repealed nor the General Taxes

postponed or diminished (except as herein otherwise expressly provided) until the Bond

Requirements of the Bond have been wholly paid.

Sectidn 35. Protective Covenants. The City Covenants and agrees with each and every

owner from time to time of the Bond, that:

A. , The Project shall be completed without delay; and

B. ' The City will make the principal and interest payments on the

Bond at tl!i*place, on the date, and in the manner specified according to the true intent and

meaning hereof. ^

Section 36. Tax Covenant. The City covenants for the benefit of the owner of the

Bond that it will not take any action or omit to take any action with respect to the Bond, the

proceeds thereof, any other funds of the City or any facilities financed or refinanced with the

proceeds of the Bond if such action or omission (i) would cause the interest on the Bond to lose

its exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the

Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Tax Code"), or (ii) would cause interest on the



Bond to lose its exclusion from alternative minimum taxable income as defined in

Section 55(b)(2) of the Tax Code. The foregoing covenant shall remain in full force and effect

notwithstanding the payment in full or defeasance of the Bond until the date on which all

obligations of the City in fulfilling the above covenant under the Tax Code have been met.

Section 37. Defeasance. When all Bond Requirements of the Bond have been duly

paid, the pledge and lien and all obligations hereunder as to that Bond shall thereby be

discharged and the Bond shall no longer be deemed to be Outstanding within the meaning of this

Ordinance. There shall be deemed to be such due payment when the City has placed in escrow

or in trust with a trust bank located within or without the State, an amount sufficient (including

the known minimum yield available for such purpose from Federal Securities in which such

amount wholly or in part may be initially invested) to meet all Bond Requirements of the Bond,

as the same become due to the final maturity of the Bond. The Federal Securities shall become

due before the respective times on which the proceeds thereof shall be needed, in accordance

with a schedule established and agreed upon between the City and the bank at the time of the

creation of the escrow or trust, or the Federal Securities shall be subject to redemption at the

option of the holders thereof to assure availability as so needed to meet the schedule. For the

purposes of this Section "Federal Securities" shall include only Federal Securities which are not

callable for redemption prior to their maturities except at the option of the owner thereof.

Section 38. Further Assurances. The Bond, when duly executed and delivered for the

purpose provided for in this Ordinance, shall constitute a warranty by and on behalf of the City

for the benefit of the owner of the Bond that the Bond has been issued for a valuable

consideration in full conformity with law.

Section 39. Owners Rights. An owner of the Bond issued hereunder shall be entitled

to all of the privileges, rights and remedies provided or permitted in the City Bond Law and the

Bond Act, and as otherwise provided or permitted by law or in equity or by other statutes, except

as otherwise provided herein, but subject to the provisions herein concerning the pledge of and

the covenants and the other contractual provisions concerning the Pledged Revenues and the

proceeds of the Bond.

Section 40. Owners Enforcement. Nothing herein affects or impairs the right of any

owner of the Bond to enforce the payment of the Bond Requirements or the obligation of the



City to pay the Bond Requirements of the Bond to the owner thereof at the time and the place

expressed in the Bond.

Section 41. Amendment of Ordinance. This Ordinance may be amended or

supplemented by instruments adopted by the City, without receipt by the City of any additional

consideration, but with the written consent of the owner of the then Outstanding Bond at the time

of the adoption of the amendatory or supplemental instrument. No such instrument shall permit:

A. A change in the maturity or in the terms of redemption of the

principal or any installment thereof of any Outstanding Bond or air^nstallment of interest

thereon;

B. A reduction in the principal amount of the Bond or the rate of

interest thereon, without the written consent of the owner of the then Outstanding Bond; or

C. A reduction of the principal amount or percentages or otherwise

affecting the description of the Bond or the consent of the owner of which is required for any

modification or amendment; or

D. The modification of, or other action which materially and

prejudicially affects the rights or privileges of the owner of the Bond, without the written consent

of the owner of the then Outstanding Bond.

Whenever the City proposes to amend or modify this Ordinance under the provisions

hereof, it shall cause notice of the proposed amendment to be mailed within 30 days to the

insurer of the Bond, if any, and each owner of the Bond. The notice shall briefly set forth the

nature of the proposed amendment and shall state that a copy of the proposed amendatory

instrument is on file in the office of the City Clerk for public inspection.

'Whenever at any time within one year from the date of such notice there shall be filed in

the office of the City Clerk an instrument or instruments executed by the insurer of the Bond, if

any, or the owner of the then Outstanding Bond, which instrument or instruments shall refer to

the proposed amendatory instrument described in the notice and shall specifically consent to and

approve the adoption of the instrument; thereupon, but not otherwise, the Council may adopt the

amendatory instrument and the instrument shall become effective.

Any Bond authenticated and delivered after the effective date of any action taken as

provided in this Section may bear a notation by endorsement or otherwise in form approved by

the City as to the action. If any Bond so authenticated and delivered shall bear such notation.



then upon demand of the owner of any Bond outstanding at such effective date and upon

presentation of his Bond, suitable notation shall be made on the Bond as to any such action. If

the City so determines, a new Bond so modified as in the opinion of the City to conform to such

action shall be prepared, registered and delivered and upon demand of the owner of any Bond

then outstanding, shall be exchanged without cost to the owner of the Bond then outstanding

upon surrender of such Bond.

Section 42. Ordinance Irrepealable. After the delivery of the Bond, the provisions of

the Bond Act and of this Ordinance shall be a part of the irrevocable contract between the City

and the owners of the Bond issued hereunder.

Section 43. Delegated Powers. The officers of the City hereb^Sfd authorized and

directed to take all action necessary or appropriate to effectuate the provisions of this Ordinance,

including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing:

A. The printing of the Bond; and f Jr

B. The execution of such certificates as may be required by the

Purchaser relating to the signing of the Bond, the tenure and identity of the officials of the City,

the assessed valuation of the taxable property in and the indebtedness of the City, the rate of

General Taxes levied against the taxable property within the City, the delivery of the Bond and

the receipt of the bond purchase price, the exemption of interest on the Bond from federal

income taxation, the completeness and accuracy of any information provided to the Purchaser in

connection with the Bond as of the date of delivery of the Bond, and if it is in accordance with

the facts, the absence of litigation, pending or threatened, affecting the validity of the Bond or

affecting the completeness or accuracy of such information, the assembly and dissemination of

financial and other information concerning the City and the Bond.

Section 44. Replacement of Registrar or Paving Agent. If the Registrar or Paying

Agent initially appointed hereunder shall resign, or if the Clerk/Treasurer shall reasonably

determine that it is in the best interests of the City to appoint a successor Registrar or Paying

Agent, the Clerk/Treasurer may, upon notice mailed to the owner of the Bond at his or her

address last shown on the registration records, appoint a successor Registrar or Paying Agent, or

both. No resignation or dismissal of the Registrar or Paying Agent may take effect until a

successor is appointed. It shall not be required that the same person or institution serve as both



Registrar and Paying Agent hereunder, but the City shall have the right to have the same person

or institution serve as both Registrar and Paying Agent.

Any successor by merger with the Registrar and Paying Agent is automatically appointed

as Registrar and Paying Agent hereunder without any further action of the Council, as long as the

successor otherwise is qualified to act as Registrar and Paying Agent pursuant to this Section.

Any City officer, bank, trust company or national banking association into which the Registrar

and/or Paying Agent or its successor may be converted, merged or with whieh it may be

consolidated, or to which it may sell or otherwise transfer all or substantially all of its corporate

trust business shall be the successor of the Registrar and/or Paying Agent under this Ordinance

with the same rights, powers, duties and obligations and subject to the same restrictions,

limitations, and liabilities as its predeeessor, all without the execution or filing of any papers or

any further act on the part of any of the parties hereto, anything herein to the^qontrary

notwithstanding.

Section 45. Implied Repealer. All bylaws, orders, resolutions and ordinances, or parts

thereof, in conflict with this Ordinance, are hereby repealed. This repealer shall not he eonstrued

to revive any bylaw, order, resolution or ordinance, or part thereof, heretofore repealed.

Section 46. Authentication. This Ordinance, immediately on its passage and adoption,

shall he recorded in the official records of the City kept for that purpose, shall he authenticated

by the signature of the Mayor of the City, shall be attested by the Clerk, and the seal of the City

shall be affixhd thereto.

^-'"-Section 47. Publication and Effeetive Date. The Couneil has expressed in the
4.

preambles to this Ordinance that it pertains to the sale, issuance, or payment of the Bond, and

that this instrument may accordingly be adopted as if an emergency now exists. This Ordinance

shall become effective after its publication by its title only, together with a statement that

typewritten copies of this Ordinance are available for inspection by interested parties at the office

of the Clerk/Treasurer, such publication to be made in a newspaper or newspapers published in

Churchill County and which is of general eirculation in the City and such publication to be in

substantially the following form:



(Form of Publication of Adoption of Ordinance)

BILL NO.

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

FALLON, NEVADA, DESIGNATED AS THE "2020 MEDIUM-
TERM BOND ORDINANCE;" PROVIDING FOR THE
ISSUANCE BY THE CITY OF ITS GENERAL OBLIGATION

(LIMITED TAX) MEDIUM-TERM BOND, SERIES 2020;
PROVIDING COVENANTS, CONDITIONS, AND OTHER
DETAILS CONCERNING THE BOND, THE PROJECT AND
GENERAL TAX PROCEEDS; RATIFYING ACTION
PREVIOUSLY TAKEN AND PERTAINING TO THE

FOREGOING BY THE CITY AND ITS OFFICERS ANDi.

EMPLOYEES; PROVIDING FOR ADOPTION AS IF AN^^
EMERGENCY EXISTS; AND PROVIDING MATTERS
RELATING THERETO.

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the above entitled Ordinance was proposed
by Councilman the regular iheeting of the City of Fallon City
Council held on December 7, 2020, and was passed and adopted at the regular meeting of the
City of Fallon City Council held on December 7, 2020, by the following vote of the City
Council: ^ '
Those Voting Aye: J/K/r ^

Those Voting N

Those Absent:

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the day of December,
2020.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City Council of the City of Fallon, Nevada has caused
this Ordinance to be published by title only.

DATED this December , 2020.

Ken Tedford



Mayor
Attest:

/s/ Sean Richardson

City Clerk/Treasurer

(End of Form of Publication of Adoption of Ordinance)



Section 48. Severability. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this

Ordinance shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or

unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall in no way effect any

remaining provisions of this Ordinance.

(SEAL)

Attest:

Mayor

City Clerk
City of Fallon, Nevada
This Ordinance shall be in force and effect from and after the of December, 202(

32



STATE OF NEVADA )

)  ss.
COUNTY OF CHURCHILL )

I, Sean Richardson, the duly chosen, qualified and acting City Clerk/Treasurer of City of
Fallon, Nevada (the "City") do hereby certify:

1. The foregoing pages are a true, perfect and a complete copy of an ordinance
adopted by the Council at a lawful meeting of the Council held on December 7, 2020, as recorded
in the official record book of the proceedings of the City kept in my office.

2. The members of the Council voted on the introduction of the ordinance on

December 7, 2020 as follows: ^

Those Voting Aye:

Those Voting Nay:

Those Absent:

Kelly Frost
Karla Kent i.'w

James Richardson \
3.

forth above.

The members of the Council voted on the final passage of the ordinance as set

4. All members of the Council were given due and proper notice of the meeting.
Pursuant to NRS 241.020 and Governor Sisolak's Declaration of Emergency Directive 006 entered
on March 22, 2020, and extended by Emergency Directive 016 entered on April 29, 2020, by
Emergency Directive 018 entered on May 7, 2020, by Emergency Directive 021 entered on May
28, 2020, by Emergency Directive 026 entered on June 29, 2020 and by Emergency Directive 029
entered on July 31, 2020. written notice of the meeting was given not later than 9:00 a.m. on the
third working day before the meeting including in the notice the time, place, location, and agenda
of the meeting:

(a) By posting a copy of the notice at least three working days before
the meeting on the City's website; at the principal office of the Council, or if there is no principal
office, at the building in which the meeting is to be held; and on the State of Nevada public notice
website; and

(b) By mailing a copy of the notice to each person, if any, who has
requested notices of meetings of the Council in compliance with NRS 241.020(3)(b) by United
States Mail, or if feasible and agreed to by the requestor, by electronic mail.

5. Upon request, the Council provides at no charge, at least one copy of the agenda
for its public meetings, any proposed ordinance or regulation which will be discussed at the public
meeting, and any other supporting materials provided to the Council for an item on the agenda.



except for certain confidential materials and materials pertaining to closed meetings, as provided
by law.

6. A copy of the notice so given of the meeting of the Council held on December
7, 2020 is attached to this certificate as Exhibit A.

7. A copy of the affidavit of publication of the Ordinance by title after its adoption is
attached to this certificate as Exhibit B.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this December 7, 2020.

(SEAL)
S^.an Richardson, City Clerk/Treasurer

34



Exhibit A

(Attach Copy of Notice of December 7, 2020 Meeting)

&

<3



Exhibit B

(Attach Affidavit of Publication of Adoption of Bond Ordinance)



7. 2020
3)

Ao^enda Item 7

Public Hearing of Bill No. 785: An Ordinance of the City
Council of the City of Fallon, Nevada, Designated as the
"2020 Medium-Term Bond Ordinance;" Providing for the
Issuance by the City of its General Obligation (Limited
Tax) Medium-Term Bond, Series 2020; Providing
Covenants, Conditions, and Other Details Concerning the
Bond, the Project and General Tax Proceeds; Ratifying
Action Previously Taken and Pertaining to the Foregoing
by the City and its Officers and Employees; Providing for
Adoption as if an Emergency Exists; and Providing
Matters Relating Thereto. (For discussion only)



CITY OF FALLON

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

Agenda Item No. ^

DATE SUBMITTED: November 30, 2020

AGENDA DATE REQUESTED: December 7, 2020

TO: The Honorable City Council

FROM: Robert Erquiaga, Chief of Staff
Sean Richardson, City Clerk/Treasurer

SUBJECT TITLE: Public Hearing of Bill No. 785: An Ordinance of the City Council of the City
of Fallon, Nevada, Designated as the "2020 Medium-Term Bond Ordinance;" Providing for the
Issuance by the City of its General Obligation (Limited Tax) Medium-Term Bond, Series 2020;
Providing Covenants, Conditions, and Other Details Concerning the Bond, the Project and
General Tax Proceeds; Ratifying Action Previously Taken and Pertaining to the Foregoing by
the City and its Officers and Employees; Providing for Adoption as if an Emergency Exists; and
Providing Matters Relating Thereto. (For discussion only)

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED: (Check One)

(  ) Resolution ( X) Ordinance
(  ) Formal Action/Motion ( ) Other

RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION: None.

DISCUSSION: The proposed Ordinance will be read by title and summary to the City Council.
This agenda item is for discussion only.

FISCAL IMPACT: Medium-Term Bonds in the aggregate principal amount not to exceed
$2,000,000

FUNDING SOURCE: Electric Enterprise Fund, Water Enterprise Fund, Sewer Enterprise Fund,
Sanitation Enterprise Fund, Landfill Enterprise Fund, Water Treatment Enterprise Fund, Airport
Fund and General Fund

PREPARED BY: Robert Erquiaga, Chief of Staff

TO BE PRESENTED BY: Robert Erquiaga and Sean Richardson



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

FALLON, NEVADA, DESIGNATED AS THE "2020 MEDIUM-
TERM BOND ORDINANCE;" PROVIDING FOR THE
ISSUANCE BY THE CITY OF ITS GENERAL OBLIGATION

(LIMITED TAX) MEDIUM-TERM BOND, SERIES 2020;
PROVIDING COVENANTS, CONDITIONS, AND OTHER
DETAILS CONCERNING THE BOND, THE PROJECT AND
GENERAL TAX PROCEEDS; RATIFYING ACTION
PREVIOUSLY TAKEN AND PERTAINING TO THE

FOREGOING BY THE CITY AND ITS OFFICERS AND

EMPLOYEES; PROVIDING FOR aSoPTION AS IF AN
EMERGENCY EXISTS; AND PROVIDING MATTERS

RELATING THERETO.

WHEREAS, the City of Fallen in the State of Nevada (the "City" and the "State,"

respectively) is a political subdivision of the State duly organized and consolidated as a city

under the provisions of chapter 266 of the Nevada Revised Statutes ("NRS") and the general

laws of the State; and ^ ^ ; -

WHEREAS, the City has previoSly executed and delivered a Federally Taxable

Lease/Purchase Agreement dated as of March 26, 2020 with Zion; Bancorporation, N.A. (the

"Prior Lease Agreement") to finance the costs of a vacuum truck for use by the City; and

WHEREAS, the Prior Lease Agreement is subject to prepayment at the option of the

City on any date; and ' ,

/ WHEREAS, pursuant-to NRS 350.087 to 350.095, inclusive (the "Note Act"), the City is

aufiiorized to issue medium-term obligations to finance improvements to City Hall and the City's

Public Works Building, the construction of a new fixed base operator building at the City's

airport (collectively, the "Improvement Project") and to refinance the Prior Lease Agreement

(the "Refunding Project" and collectively with the Improvement Project, the "Project"); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Note Act, the City authorized to issue, as evidence thereof,

negotiable medium-term notes or bonds which shall not be paid in whole or in part from a levy

of a special tax exempt from the limitations on the levy of ad valorem taxes, but which shall be

paid from other legally available funds of the City (subject to certain Constitutional and statutory

tax limitations), which must mature not later than 10 years after the date of issuance and must



bear interest at a rate or rates which do not exceed by more than 3% the "Index of Twenty

Bonds" which was most recently published before bids for their purchase are received; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 350.087, the City Council of the City (the "Council")

determined to publish a notice (the "Notice"), of its intention to authorize and to issue medium-

term obligations in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $2,000,000, in a newspaper of

general circulation in the City and an affidavit of such publication is on file in the office of the

City Clerk (the "Clerk"); and , '
WHEREAS, the Coimeil adopted by at least a'^^-thifds majority a resolution

authorizing medium-term obligations in the maximum principal amount of $2,000,000 to finance

the Project (the "Authorization Resolution") which contained a finding by the Council that the

public interest requires medium-term obligations and a statement of the facts upon which the

finding was based, which vote was taken at least 10 days after the publication of the Notice; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 350.089 and relevant provisions of the Nevada

Administrative Code, the Council causqd a certified copy of the Authorization Resolution and

supporting documents to be submitted to the Executive Director of the Department of Taxation

of the State of Nevada (the "Department of Taxation") for his or her approval; and

WHEREAS, the City received the approval of the Department of Taxation for such

medium-term obligations, a copy of such approval being attached hereto as follows:

''4- (Attach Approval of Department of Taxation)



ST£VESISOLAK
Governor

JAMES DEVOLLD
C/jflfr; Atevada Tax Commission

MELANIE YOUNG
ExeaUive Director

November 25,2020

Sean Richardson
City Clerk Treasurer
City of Fallon
55 West Williams Avenue
Falion, NV 89406

STATE OF NEVADA

DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION
Web Site; https://tax.nv.gov

1550 College Parkway, Suite 115
Carson Oty. Nevada 89708-7937

Phone: {775} 684-2000 Fax: (775) 684-2020

US VEGAS OFRCE
Gram Sawyer Office Building. SuUe1300

555 E. Washington Avenue
Las Vegas« Nevada 69101

Phono: (7021486-2300 Fax: {702} 486-2373

RENO OFFICE
4600 Ktetzke Lane

Building L, Suite 235
Reno, Nevada 89502
Phone: (775) 667*9999
Fax: (775) 688*1303

HENDERSON OFRCE
2550 Paseo Verde Parkway, Suite 160

Henderson, Nevada 89074
Phone: (702) 486-2300
Fax: (702) 486-3377

Re: City of Fallon
MTO - Medium-Term Obligation (Bonds)
2,000,000 for financing a new Airport FBO Building, Remodeling Public Worits Building & City
Hall, and Refinancing Vacuum Truck

Dear Mr. Richardson:

The DepartmeiJ of Taxation has received a request from the City of Fallon for the approval of a
Medium-Term Obligation not to exceed $2,000,000. This medium-term obligation will be used to
finance improvements to City Hall and the Citys Public Works Building, the construction of a new fixed
tese operator building at the City's airport and refinancing certain outstanding obligations of the City,
mis Medium-Teiro Obligation is to be repaid from the operating revenues generated from the City's
Electnc, Water, Sewer, Sanitation, Landfill, Water Treatment and Airport Enterpn'se Funds and the
General Fund, pie term for this obligation is not to exceed ten (10) years after the date of execution
and the interest rate ̂ all not exceed by more than 3 percent the "Index of Twenty Bonds" most
recentiy published in The Bond Buyer" before bids are received or negotiated offer Is accepted The
annual interest rate is estimated to be 2.50%.

The request has been reviewed as required by NRS 350.089 and is APPROVED.

Pureuant to NRS 350.089, the approval must be recorded In the minutes of the governing board at the
next meeting. You are reminded the financing must be secured within eighteen months of receipt of this
approval.

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact Kellie Grahmann, Budget Analyst in the
Local Government Finance Section at (775) 684-2065 or at kQrahmann@tax.stat6.nv.us.

Sincerely,

Melanie Young
Executive Director
Nevada Department of Taxation



WHEREAS, the approval of the Department of Taxation as set forth in the preambles

hereof is hereby recorded in the minutes of the Council as required by NRS 350.089; and

WHEREAS, the City has not previously utilized any of the authority so approved by the

Department of Taxation; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Authorization Resolution, the Council ordered the medium-

term obligations to be offered for sale in the form of medium-term bonds and authorized the City

Clerk/Treasurer (the "Clerk/Treasurer") to arrange for the sale of such medium-term bonds

subject to, among other conditions, adoption by the City of this Ordinance specifying the bond

terms and details and approving their sale; and

WHEREAS, the Council hereby determines that the bond herein authorized to be issued

shall be designated the "City of Fallon, Nevada, General Obligation (Limited Tax) Medium-

Term Bond, Series 2020" in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $2,000,000 (the

"Bond"); and

WHEREAS, the Council has determined and hereby declares and determines that legally

available funds of the City will at least equal the amount required in each year for the payment of

interest on and the principal of the Bond; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 350,091, the Council has determined and hereby

determines that the maximum term of the Bond does not exceed the estimated useful life of the

Project financed with the proceeds of the Bond; and

WHEREAS, the Council has heretofore elected to and hereby determines to issue the

Bond in accordance with the provisions of NRS 350.500 through 350.720, and all laws

amendatory thereof, cited in NRS 350.500 by the short title "Local Government Securities Law"

(the "Bond Act"); and

WHEREAS, the Council hereby elects to have the provisions of NRS Chapter 348 (the

"Supplemental Bond Act") apply to the Bond; and

WHEREAS, the Council is not authorized to levy general ad valorem taxes (the

"General Taxes") to pay the principal of or interest on the Bond which are exempt from the

limitations of any statutes of the State; and

WHEREAS, any General Taxes levied for the purpose of paying principal or interest on

the Bond will be subject to the limitations contained in the Constitution and the statutes of the



State, including, without limitation, the limitations on General Taxes contained in NRS Sections

354.59811, 354.59813, 354.59815, 354.5982 and 361.453; and

WHEREAS, the Council is therefore authorized and empowered by the City Bond Law,

the Note Act, the approval of the Department of Taxation, and the Bond Act, without any further

preliminaries:

A. To issue and sell the City's Bond; and

B. To exercise the incidental powers provided in the Bond Act in connection

with the powers authorized therein or as otherwise expressly provided therein; and

WHEREAS, after a sale of the Bond pursuant to NRS 350.105 to 350.195, the

Clerk/Treasurer is hereby authorized to sell the Bond to the best bidder therefor (the

"Purchaser"), and accept a binding bid for the Bond; and

WHEREAS, the Bond is to bear interest at the rates or rates per annum provided in the

bond purchase proposal submitted by the Purchaser (the "Bond Purchase Proposal") and

accepted by the Clerk/Treasurer, which rates must not exceed by more than 3% the Index of

Twenty Bonds most recently published in The Bond Buyer prior to the time bids were received

for the Bond, and are to be sold at a price equal to the principal amount thereof, plus accrued

interest to the date of delivery of the Bond, if any, less a discount not exceeding 9% of the

principal amount thereof or plus a premium, all as specified in a certificate dated on or after the

sale date of the Bond (the "Certificate of the Clerk/Treasurer"); and

WHEREAS, the Council has determined and hereby declares that each of the limitations

and other conditions to the issuance of the Bond in the City Bond Law, the Note Act, the Bond

Act, the Supplemental Bond Act, and in any other relevant act of the State or the Federal

Government, has been met, and pursuant to NRS 350.708 this determination of the Coimcil that

the limitatlQns in the Bond Act have been met shall be conclusive in the absence of fraud or

arbitrary or gross abuse of discretion; and

WHEREAS, the Council has determined and does hereby declare that each of the

limitations and other conditions to the issuance of the Bond in the Bond Act, and in any other

relevant act of the State or the Federal Government, has been met and pursuant to Section

350.708 of the Bond Act, this determination of the Council that the limitations in the Bond Act

have been met shall be conclusive in the absence of fraud or arbitrary or gross abuse of

discretion; and



WHEREAS, the Council has determined and does hereby declare:

A. This Ordinance pertains to the sale, issuance and payment of the Bond;

B. Such declaration shall be conclusive in the absence of fraud or gross abuse of

discretion in accordance with the provisions of Subsection 2 of NRS 350.579; and

C. This Ordinance may accordingly be adopted as if an emergency now exists by

an affirmative vote of all of the voting members of the Council (excluding from any such

computation any vacancy on the Council and any member thereof who may vote only to break a tie

vote), and this Ordinance may become effective at any tirne when an emergency ordinance of the

City may go into effect. „ ,

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FALLON DOES

ORDAIN: V ; ;

Section 1. Short Title. This ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the "2020

Medium-Term Bond Ordinance" (herein the "Ordinance").

Section 2. Acceptance of Purchase iProposal. The Clerk/Treasurer is authorized to

accept the Bond Purchase Proposal submitted by the Purchaser and execute the Certificate of the

Clerk/Treasurer, subject to the terms and conditions specified herein.

Section 3. , Ratification. All action heretofore taken by the Council and the officers

and employees of the City directed toward the Project and toward the issuance, sale and delivery

of the Bond is ratified, approved and confirmed.

4 Section 4. Necessity of Project and Bond: Authorization of Project. It is necessary
and in the best interests of the Council its officers, and the inhabitants of the City, that the City

effect the Project and defray wholly or in part the cost thereof by the issuance of the Bond

therefor, and it is hereby so determined and declared. The Council hereby authorizes the Project.

Section 5. Authorization of Bond. For the purpose of providing funds to pay all or a

portion of the cost of the Project, the City shall issue the "City of Fallon, Nevada, General

Obligation (Limited Tax) Medium-Term Bond, Series 2020" in the aggregate principal amount

set forth in the Certificate of the Clerk/Treasurer (not to exceed $2,000,000). The Bond shall be

issued in the form substantially as set forth in Section 21 of this Ordinance.

Section 6. Ordinance to Constitute Contract. In consideration of the purchase and the

acceptance of the Bond by those who shall own the same from time to time, the provisions



hereof shall be deemed to be and shall constitute contracts between the City and the owners from

time to time of the Bond.

Section 7. General Obligation. All of the Bond, as to the principal thereof and the

interest thereon (the "Bond Requirements"), shall constitute a general obligation of the City,

which hereby pledges its full faith and credit for their payment.

Section 8. Payment of the Bond. The Bond Requirements of the Bond shall be

payable from any monies legally available therefor, and provision for the payment of the Bond

Requirements of the Bond shall be made as provided in the Note Act, provided, however, that

General Taxes levied for the purpose of paying the principal of or interesf on the Bond shall be

subject to the limitations contained in the Constitution and statutes of the State, including,

without limitation, the limitations on the levy of General Taxes imposed by NRS 354.59811,

354.59813, 354.59815, 354.5982 and 361.453. The City is not authorized to levy General Taxes

exempt from the limitations of any of said statutes to pay the Bond Requirements of the Bond.

The City hereby irrevocably covenants with the registered owner of the Bond from time to time

that it will make sufficient provisions annually in its budget to pay the Bond Requirements of the

Bond, when due.

Section 9. Limitations upon Security. The payment of the Bond is not secured by an

encumbrance, mortgage, or other pledge of property of the City, except for the proceeds of

General Taxes and any other moneys pledged for the payment of the Bond. No property of the

City, subject to such exception, shall be liable to be forfeited or taken in payment of the Bond.

Section 10. No Recourse Against Officers and Agents. No recourse shall be had for

the payment of the Bond Requirements of the Bond or for any claim based thereon or otherwise

upon this Ordinance or any other instrument relating thereto, against any individual member of

the Council, or any officer or other agent of the Council or City, past, present or future, either

directly or indirectly through the Council or the City, or otherwise, whether by virtue of any

constitution, statute or rule of law, or by the enforcement of a penalty or otherwise, all such

liability, if any, being by the acceptance of the Bond and as a part of the consideration of its

issuance specially waived and released.

Section 11. Bond Details. The Bond shall be issued in fully registered form, i.e.,

registered as to both principal and interest, in compliance with Section 149 of the Tax Code, and

the regulations of the Secretary of the Treasury thereunder. The Bond shall be dated as of the



date of delivery of the Bond and shall be issued as a single bond in the aggregate principal

amount thereof. The Bond shall bear interest from its date until its maturity date at the rate set

forth in the Certificate of the Cleric/Treasurer, calculated on the basis of a 360-day year, payable

semiannually on March 1 and September 1 of each year commencing on the March 1, or

September 1 first occurring which is at least 45 days after the date of delivery of the Bond;

provided that a Bond which is reissued upon transfer, exchange or other replacement shall bear

interest at the rate set forth in the Certificate of the ClerkyXreasurer from the most recent interest

payment date to which interest has been paid or duly provided for, or if no interest has been paid,

fi"om the date of the Bond. The Bond shall mature in each of the designated amounts of principal

and designated dates as set forth in the Certificate of the Clerk/Treasurer.

The principal of any Bond shall be payable to the registered owner thereof as shown on

the registration records kept by the City Treasurer, as "Registrar" upon maturity thereof and

upon presentation and surrender at the office of the City Treasurer, as "Paying Agent;" provided,

however, that such presentation and surrender requirement shall only apply on the final maturity

date of the Bond and shall not apply to mandatory sinking fund redemption payments. If any

Bond shall not be paid upon such presentation and surrender at or after maturity, it shall continue

to draw interest at the interest rate borne by said Bond until the principal thereof is paid in full.

Payment of interest on any Bond shall be made to the registered owner thereof by check or draft

mailed by the Paying Agent, on each interest payment date (or, if such interest payment date is

not a business day, on the next succeeding business day), to the registered owner thereof, at his

or her address as shown on the registration records kept by the Registrar as of the close of

business on the 15th day of the calendar month next preceding each interest payment date (other

than a . special interest payment date, hereafter fixed for payment of defaulted interest) (the

"Regular Repord Date"). Any such interest not so timely paid or duly provided for shall cease to

be payable to the owner thereof as shown on the registration records of the Registrar as of the

close of business on the Regular Record Date and shall be payable to the owner thereof, at his or

her address, as shown on the registration records of the Registrar as of the close of business on a

date fixed to determine the names and addresses of owners for the purpose of paying defaulted

interest (the "Special Record Date"). Such Special Record Date shall be fixed by the Paying

Agent whenever moneys become available for payment of the defaulted interest, and notice of

the Special Record Date shall be given to the owners of the Bond not less than 10 days prior



thereto by first-class mail to each such owner as shown on the Registrar's registration records as

of a date selected by the Registrar, stating the date of the Special Record Date and the date fixed

for the payment of such defaulted interest. The Paying Agent may make payments of interest on

any Bond by such alternative means as may be mutually agreed to between the owner of such

Bond and the Paying Agent. All such payments shall be made in lawful money of the United

States of America without deduction for any service charges of the Paying Agent or Registrar.: tne fayi

Section 12. Prior Redemption.

A. Optional Prior Redemption. The Bond, or portions thereof ($1,000 or any

integral multiple), will be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the City, on

and after the dates set forth in the Certificate of the Clerk/Treasurer, in whole or in part at any

time, at a price equal to the principal amount of the Bond, or portion thereof, so redeemed,

accrued interest thereon to the redemption date, and a premium, if any, computed in accordance

with the schedule set forth in the Certificate of the Clerk/Treasurer.

B. Partial Redemption. If only a portion of the Bond is redeemed pursuant to

this Section 12, the Registrar shall, without charge to the owner of such Bond, authenticate and

issue a replacement Bond for the unredeemed portion thereof. The Paying Agent shall select the

portion of the Bond to be redeemed by lot at such times as directed by the City (but at least 30

days prior to the redemption date).

C. Mandatory Redemption. The Bond will be subject to mandatory sinking

fund redemption-on the dates designated in the Certificate of the Clerk/Treasurer, if any, at a

redeniption price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof and accrued interest to the

redemption date. As and for a sinking fund for the redemption of the Bond, there shall be

deposited into the Medium-Term Debt Service Account, hereinafter created, on or before the

dates set forth in the Certificate of the Clerk/Treasurer, a sum which, together with other moneys

available therein, is sufficient to redeem (after credit is provided below) on the dates set forth in

the Certificate of the Clerk/Treasurer, the principal amoimts of the Bond as set forth in the

Certificate of the Clerk/Treasurer.

At the option of the City to be exercised by delivery of a written certificate to the

Registrar not less than sixty days next preceding any sinking fund redemption date, it may

(i) deliver to the Registrar for cancellation the Bond or portions thereof ($ 1,000 or any integral

multiple thereof) in an aggregate principal amount desired by the City or, (ii) specify a principal



amount of the Bond or portions thereof ($1,000 or any integral multiple thereof) which prior to

said date have been redeemed (otherwise than through the operation of the sinking fund) and

canceled by the Registrar and not theretofore applied as a credit against any sinking fund

redemption obligation. The Bond or portion thereof so delivered or previously redeemed shall

be credited by the Registrar at 100% of the principal amount thereof against the obligation of the

City on the sinking fund redemption dates and any excess shall be so credited against future

sinking fund redemption obligations in such manner as the City determines. In the event the City

shall avail itself of the provisions of clause (i) of the first sentence of this paragraph, the

certificate required by the first sentence of this paragraph shall be accompanied by the Bond or

portions thereof to be canceled.

D. Redemption Notice. Unless waived by any owner of the Bond to be

redeemed, official notice of prior redemption shall be given by the Registrar on direction of the

City, by first-class mail to the registered owner of the Bond or part of which is to be redeemed at

the address shown on the records of the Registrar, at least 30 days and not more than 60 days

prior to the date fixed for redemption. Failure to give such notice to the registered owner of the

Bond, or any defect therein, shall not afiect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of

any other Bond. All sqgh notices of redemption shall be dated and shall state:

i. ; the redemption date,

ii. ; . the redemption prices,

^  ' if less than all of the outstanding Bond is to be redeemed,

the identification (and, in the case of partial redemption, the principal amount) of the Bond to be

redeemed, ^

on the redemption date the redemption price will

become due and payable upon the Bond or portion thereof called for redemption, and that

interest thereon shall cease to accrue fi:om and after said date, and

V. the place where the Bond is to be surrendered for payment

of the redemption price, which place of payment shall be the office of the Paying Agent.

The notice of redemption having been given as aforesaid, such Bond or portion of Bond

so to be redeemed shall, on the redemption date, become due and payable at the redemption price

therein specified, and from and after such date (unless the City shall default in the payment of the

redemption price) such Bond or portion of Bond shall cease to bear interest. Upon surrender of



such Bond for redemption in accordance with said notice, such Bond shall be paid by the Paying

Agent at the redemption price. Installments of interest due prior to the redemption date and, if

the redemption date is an interest payment date, on the redemption date shall be payable as

herein provided for payment of interest Accrued interest due on any Bond which is called for

prior redemption on a date which is not an interest payment date will be paid at the time the

principal of such Bond is paid. Upon surrender for any partial redCT^ton of any Bond, there
shall be prepared for the registered owner a new Bond of the saip^^turity in the amount of the
unpaid principal. Any Bond which has been redeemed shajj^y^^^ and destroyed by the
Registrar and shall not be reissued. A certificate by th^^Strar that of redemption has

5^e as against all pap&^^and no owner

ider of any Bond or any offli^erson may

been given as provided in this Section shall be co

whose Bond is called for redemption or any o

object thereto or may object to the cessation of intef^^ the i^^fition date on the^lmd that
he failed actually to receive or see such||ptice of call ami^^^fLn

Notwithstanding the provisionS^^^^^Section, any^^^e of redemption may contain a
statement that the redemption is conditi<^^ u^^^^eceipt ̂^^KPaying Agent of funds on or
before the date fixed for redemption suffic^fe to pay^H^pti^fcice of the Bond so called
for redemption, and^^^l^uS^ta are ncfc^Se. such^^lfnption shall be cancelled by
written notice to l^&yner of the called fo^Bdemption in the same manner as the original
redemption notice \

^stration provisions herein provided, the

Bon^fiMf be fifflfeli||otiS^^^thin the mea^g of and for the purposes of the Uniform
C^^^rcial Code - In

holder^Hl^gotiable ins

14. Regist^&n. Transfer, and Exchange of Bond.

|ent "li^^ties and each owner shall possess all rights enjoyed by
its imdSBle Uniform Commercial Code - Investment Securities.

.. ^^^ords for the registration and transfer of the Bond shall be kept
by the Registrar. C^j^^^ender of any Bond at the Registrar, duly endorsed for transfer or
accompanied by an assi^ment in form satisfactory to the Registrar duly executed by the owner

or his attorney duly authorized in writing, the Registrar shall authenticate and deliver in the name

of the transferee or transferees a new Bond of a like principal amoimt and of the same maturity,

bearing a number not previously assigned. Any Bond may be exchanged at the Registrar for an

equal aggregate principal amount of Bond, as provided in Section 11 hereof. The Registrar shall

10



authenticate and deliver a Bond which the owner making the exchange is entitled to receive,

bearing a number or numbers not previously assigned. Such transfers and exchanges of any

Bond shall be without charge to the owner or any transferee, but the Registrar shall require the

payment by the owner of any Bond requesting exchange or transfer, of any tax or other

governmental charge required to be paid with respeet to sueh exehange or transfer.

B. The person in whose name the Bond shall be registered on the

registration reeords kept by the Registrar shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner

thereof for the purpose of payment and for all other purposes (except to the extent otherwise

provided in Seetion 11 hereof with respect to interest payments); and payment of or on aceount

of either prineipal or interest on any Bond shall be made only to or upon the written order of the

owner thereof or his legal representative. All such payments shall be valid and effeetual to

discharge the liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.

C. If any Bond shall be lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated, the

Registrar shall, upon receipt of such evidence, information or indemnity relating thereto as it or

the City may reasonably require, and upon payment of all expenses in connection therewith,

authentieate and deliver a replaeement Bond of a like aggregate principal amount, bearing a

number or numbers not previously assigned. If such lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated Bond

shall have matured or shall have been called for redemption, the Registrar may direct that such

Bond be paid by the Paying Agent in lieu of replacement.

^  D- s Whenever any Bond shall be surrendered to the Paying Agent upon
paypient thereof, or to the Registrar for transfer, exchange or replacement as provided herein,

sdch Bond shall be promptly caneeled by the Paying Agent or Registrar, and eoimterparts of a

certificate of such cancellation shall be furnished by the Paying Agent or Registrar to the

Coimeil, upon request.

E. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this

Ordinanee, the Bond may only be transferred in whole to a new owner who is: (i) an affiliate of

the original Purchaser of the Bonds; (ii) a "Bank" as defined in Section 3(a)(2) of the Securities

Aet of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"); (iii) an "Accredited Investor" as defined in

Regulation D vmder the Seeurities Act; or (iv) a "Qualified Institutional Buyer" as defined in

Rule 144A under the Seeurities Act.



Section 15. rRESERVEDI.

Section 16. Execution and Authentication.

A. Prior to the execution of any Bond by facsimile signature and

pursuant to NRS 350.638, to the act known as the Uniform Facsimile Signatures of Public

Officials Act, cited as Chapter 351, NRS, and to the Supplemental Bond Act, the Mayor, and the

City Clerk/Treasurer each shall file with the Secretary of State of Nevada his or her manual

signature certified by him or her under oath.

B. The Bond shall be signed and executed in the name of and on

behalf of the City with the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor, shall be countersigned

and executed with the manual or facsimile signature of the City Treasurer, and shall be

countersigned, subscribed, and executed with the manual or facsimile signature of the City Clerk.

C. No Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose imless the

certificate of authentication thereon, substantially in the form hereinafter provided, has been duly

manually executed by the Registrar. By authenticating the Bond initially delivered pursuant to

this Ordinance, the Registrar shall be deemed to have assented to all of the provisions of this

Ordinance.

D. The Mayor, the City Treasurer and the Clerk are hereby authorized

and directed to prepare and to execute the Bond a? herein provided.

Section 17. Use of Predecessor's Signature. The Bond bearing the signatures of the

officers in office at the time of their execution shall be valid and binding obligations of the City,

notwithstanding that before their delivery any or all of the persons who executed them shall have

ceased to fill their respective offices. The Mayor, and the City Clerk/Treasurer, at the time of the

execution of a signature certificate relating to the Bond, may each adopt as and for his or her

own facsimile signature, the facsimile signature of his or her predecessor in office if such

facsimile signature appears upon the Bond.

Section 18. Incontestable Recital. Pursuant to NRS 350.628, the Bond shall contain a

recital that they are issued pursuant to the Bond Act, which recital shall be conclusive evidence

of the validity of the Bond and the regularity of its issuance.



Section 19. State Tax Exemption. Pursuant to NRS 350.710, the Bond, its transfer and

the income therefrom shall forever be and remain free and exempt from taxation by the State or

any subdivision thereof, except for the tax on estates imposed pursuant to NRS Chapter 3 75A

and the tax on generation skipping transfers imposed pursuant to NRS Chapter 375B.

Section 20. Bond Deliverv. After registration by the Registrar and after their

execution and authentication as provided herein, the Registrar shall cause the Bond to be

delivered to the Purchaser, upon payment being made in accordance with the terms of their sale.

Section 21. Bond Form. Subject to the provisions of this Ordinance, the Bond shall be

in substantially the following form, with such omissions, insertions, endorsements, and

variations as may be required by the circumstances, be required or permitted by this Ordinance,

or be consistent with this Ordinance and necessary or appropriate to conform to the rules and

requirements of any governmental authority or any usage or requirement of law with respect



(Form of Bond)

THE REGISTERED OWNER OF THIS BOND ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT
THIS BOND MAY ONLY BE TRANSFERRED TO A NEW OWNER WHO IS: (I) AN
AFFILIATE OF THE ORIGINAL PURCHASER OF THIS BOND; (H) A "BANK" AS
DEFINED IN SECTION 3(A)(2) OF THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED
(THE "SECURITIES ACT"); (HI) AN "ACCREDITED INVESTOR" AS DEFINED IN
REGULATION D UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT; OR A "QUALIFIED
INSTITUTIONAL BUYER" AS DEFINED IN RULE 144A UJ^^t THE SECURITIES
ACT.

TRANSFER OF TfflS BOND OTHER THAN BY REGI

CITY OF FALLON

GENERAL OBLIGATIO

MEDIUM

SERIE»20

NOT EFFECTIVE

No.

Interest Rate

% per annum

REGISTERED OWNERjC

PRINCIPAL AM(

A

ITED TAX)

4

ch

Dated As of

,2020

DOLLARS

The City of in of Chu^tol and the State of Nevada (the "City," the

Coun^^^^^^e hereby acknowledges itself to be
p^'^^^he registered oi^er specified above, or registered assigns, the

amoimt specifi^^bovei^^^lhe maturity date specified above (unless called for earlier
reder^^^), and to pay iru^&t therd^wi March I and September 1 of each year, commencing
on 'W^21, at the intf^t rate per aimum specified above, until the principal is paid or
payment has "^^^i^rovidej^^- or, if such payment date is not a business day, on the next
succeeding busine^^^y^^as Bond shall bear interest from the most recent interest payment

date to which interest has been paid or, if no interest has been paid, from the date of the initial

delivery of this Bond (the "Bond"). The principal of this Bond is payable upon presentation and

surrender hereof at the office of the City's paying agent for the Bond or any successor (the

"Paying Agent"), presently the City Clerk/Treasurer in Fallon, Nevada who is also now acting as

the City's Registrar for the Bond (the "Registrar"); provided, however, that such presentation

14



and surrender requirement shall only apply on the final maturity date of the Bond and shall not

apply to mandatory sinking fund redemption payments. Interest on this Bond will be paid on

each interest payment date (or, if such date is not a business day, on the next succeeding business

day) by check or draft mailed to the person in whose name this Bond or any predecessor bond is

registered (the "registered owner") in the registration records of the City maintained by the

Registrar, at the address appearing thereon, as of the close of buspi^^n the 15th day of the
calendar month next preceding such interest payment date (the^Suiar Record Date"). Any
such interest not so timely paid or duly provided for shall c^^^^^^^able to the person who
is the registered owner as of the close of business onA Regular Date and shall be

payable to the person who is the registered owner close of busine^^^. special record
date for the payment of any defaulted interest (tl^Wecial Record Date"). Suc^^ial Record
Date shall be fixed by the Registrar whenever n^^^ bec^^^^ailable for payi^t of the
defaulted interest, and notice of the S^|^|al Record given to the registered owner
not less than ten (10) days prior theret^|^^i^^^tive means^^^gment of interest may be used if
mutually agreed to by the registered own^^d^^^^g Ag^^^rovided in the ordinance of
the City Council of the (^^^.^Councif'^thoriz^^^^s^c'^^e Bond and designated
in Section 1 thereof ̂^^%®^^|ium-Te^^^*brdin^^^duly adopted by the Council
(the "Ordinance";^™'such paym^fe shall b^Kde in lawful money of the United States of
America without d^^^^n for^^^^^ice char^^fef the Paying Agent or Registrar. If this
Bond is.,ag^aid,.ur>on fê ^ifeon af%i^»ffiiatv%fiterest at the rate specified above shall

bd^^^^by principal h^»f is discharged as provided in the Ordinance,
^ybis Bond is isi^^d by il^fejity upon its behalf and upon the credit thereof, for the

P'^o^^^^nancing all or^^&tion cost of the Project as set forth in the Ordinance, under
the authon^^^nd in full cc^yiance with the Constitution and laws of the State, and pursuant
to the Ordinanc

The Bond, ̂^^^^Incipal thereof and the interest thereon (the "Bond Requirements"),
shall be payable from moneys of the City legally available for the purpose of mflking such

payment and the full faith and credit of the City are hereby irrevocably pledged for making such

payment. Provision for the payment of the Bond shall be made as provided in NRS 350.093 and

350.095, provided, however, that ad valorem taxes levied for the purpose of paying the principal

of and interest on the Bond are subject to the limitations contained in the Constitution and the

15



statutes of the State, including, without limitation, the limitations on ad valorem taxes contained

in NRS 354.59811, 354.5913, 354.59815, 354.5982 and 361.453. The City is not authorized to

levy ad valorem taxes to pay the principal of or interest on the Bond exempt from the limitations

of any such statutes, but the City has covenanted in the Ordinance to make sufficient provision

annually in its budget to pay the Bond Requirements of the Bond, when due.

The City covenants and agrees with the Registered Owner of this Bond and with each and

every person who may become the Registered Owner hereof that it will keep and will perform all

of the covenants of the Ordinance.

The Bond is subject to [optional redemption and] mandatory sinking fund redemption as

set forth in the Ordinance and the Certificate of the Clerk/Treasurer.

No transfer of this Bond shall be valid unless made on the registration records maintained

at the principal office of the Registrar by the registered owner or his or her attorney duly

authorized in writing.

This Bond is not transferable or exchangeable, except as set forth in the Bond Ordinance.

No recourse shall be had for the payment of the Bond Requirements of this Bond or for

any claim based thereon or otherwise in respect to the Ordinance or other instrument pertaining

thereto against any individual member of the Council, or any officer or other agent of the City,

past, present, or future, either directly or indirectly through the Council or otherwise, whether by

virtue of any constitution, statute or rule of law, or by the enforcement of any penalty or

otherwisej all such liability, if any, being by the acceptance of this Bond and as a part of the

consideration of its issuance specially waived and released.

■  It is hereby certified, recited, declared and warranted that all actions required to be taken

prior to,the issuance hereof have been had and taken by the City; that the issuance of the Bond

has been approved by the Executive Director of the Department of Taxation of the State of

Nevada as required by the NRS 350.087 to 350.095, inclusive, and that the principal of the Bond,

when added to other City indebtedness, does not exceed the limits on indebtedness of the City

provided in the Constitution and statutes of the State.

This Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit rmder the Ordinance, or be valid or

obligatory for any purpose until the Registrar shall have manually signed the certificate of

authentication hereon.



[The City has designated the Bond as a "qualified tax-exempt obligation within the

meaning of Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City Coimcil of the City of Fallon, Nevada, has caused

this Bond to be executed in the name and on behalf of the City with the manual or facsimile

signature of the Mayor, to be attested, signed and executed with a manual or facsimile signature

of the City Clerk, has caused a manual or facsimile impression of the seal of the City to be

affixed hereon, and has caused this Bond to be countersigned with the manual or facsimile

signature of the City Treasurer, all as of 2020.

CITY OF FALLON, NEVADA

Mayor
CManual or Facsimile Sigfitfl

(MANUAL OR FACSIMILE SEAL)

(Manual

City Clerk
Mmile Signature

Manual or Facsimile Signature!

Treasurer ,

(End of Form of Bond)



(Form of Registrar's Certificate of Authentication for Bond)

Date of authentication

and registration

This is the Bond described in the within-mentioned Ordinance, and this Bond has been

duly registered on the registration records kept by the undersigned as Registrar for such Bond.

THE CITY OF FALLON TREASURER

as Registrar , .,

CManual Signatured

Authorized Officer



(Form of Registration Panel)

The within Bond is registered in the office of the Registrar, in the name of the last
owner listed below, and the principal amount of the Bond and interest thereon shall be payable only
to such owner, all in accordance with the within-mentioned Ordinance.

Date of

Registration

Name of

Registered Owner

Signature of
Registrar



(Form of Prepayment Panel)

The following installments of principal (or portions thereof) of this Bond have been
prepaid by the City of Fallon, Nevada, in accordance with the terms of the within-mentioned
Ordinance.

Due Date of

Installments

Date of (or portions
Prepavment thereof)

Principal
Amount

Prepaid

Signature of



(Form of Assignment for Bond)

For value reeeived, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto the within

Bond and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints attorney, to

transfer the same on the records kept for registration of the within Bond, with full power of

substitution in the premises.

Dated:

Signature Guaranteed:

Name and address of transferee:
Social Security or other tax
identification number of " .
transferee: ,

NOTE: The signature to this Assignment must correspond with the name as written on the face
of the within Bond in every particular, without alteration or enlargement or any change
whatsoever. Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an eligible guarantor institution as defined in 17
CFR§240.17Ad-15(a)(2).

NOTICE: TRANSFER FEES MOST BE PAID TO THE REGISTRAR IN ORDER TO
TRANSFER OR EXCHANGE THIS BOND AS PROVIDED IN THE WITHIN-MENTIONED
ORDINANCE. ^ ^



Section 22. Use of Bond Proceeds. A portion of the proceeds realized from the sale of

the Bond shall be used to effect the Refunding Project. The remaining proceeds realized from

the sale of the Bond shall be deposited in a special account hereby created and designated as the

"City of Fallon, Medium-Term, Series 2020, Acquisition Account" (the "Acquisition Account")

to be held by the City. Moneys in the Acquisition Account shall be used solely to defray wholly

or in part the cost of the Project including, without limitation, as pr®#^d in NRS 350.516, all
costs of issuing the Bond, and the costs of rebates to the United^^plf under Section 148 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Tax the Council hereby

determines are necessary and desirable and pertain to^^roject. After'^^roject is complete
and after all expenses have been paid or adequate ni^Won therefor is mai^^j^suant to NRS
350.650, any imexpended balance of Bond pro(^^^"(or, unless otherwise requ^^^^ law, any
other moneys) remaining in the Acquisition Acco^^all be^^^ited into the Me^im-Term
Debt Service Accotmt, hereinafter cre^fd, to be used tS le principal of and interest on the

Bond.

accoimt designated in this

obligated to pay a f

or rei^ested in any investments

Section 23. Permitted Investm^aits. A^^oneys iri

Ordinance, and not needed for immediate i^fmay h

permitted under the l^fel^flhe^^^. For tl^ferftee of any®^^ investment or reinvestment,
the securities shali^^^eemed to m^^e at the d^ffiest date on which the obligor is, on demand.

in di^^^ge of the wlM^f such obligations.

lenWlw^fiurSnt to NRS 350.658, any gain fr-om any

^f any proceeds "of the Bond shall be deposited promptly uponmve^^MF and an

fro® time to time into the Acquisition Account to defrray,
in pa^^^^ost of the Proj^^or, if^^^uate provision has been made for the Project, into the
Medium-T^^^^ebt Service^^cotmt, hereinafter created, for the respective payment of the
principal of of^^rest on^^yond or any combination thereof. As provided in Section 28
hereof, any annuaH^^^^^^'axes for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Bond
levied after such deposiWbf any such investment or reinvestment gain, may be diminished to the

extent of the availability of such deposit for the payment of such principal or interest.

Section 25. Completion of Project. The City, with the proceeds derived fr-om the sale

of the Bond, shall proceed to complete the Project without delay and with due diligence to the

best of the City's ability, as hereinabove provided.

22



Section 26. Prevention of Bond Default. Subject to the provisions of this Ordinance,

the Clerk/Treasurer shall use any Bond proceeds credited to the Acquisition Account, without

further order or warrant, to pay the Bond Requirements of the Bond as the same become due

whenever and to the extent moneys otherwise available therefor are insufficient for that purpose,

unless such Bond proceeds shall be needed to defray obligations accrued and to accrue imder any

contracts then existing and pertaining to the Project. The Clerk/Tre^||r shall promptly notify
the Coimcil of any such use.

Section 27. Purchaser Not Responsible. The le Bond shall not be

dependent on nor be affected by the validity or regi4a|fe, of any pro1 s relating to the

Project, or any part thereof, or to the completion of^^^ject. The owner Bond shall in
no manner be responsible for the application o^Kosal by the City or by any^^ts officers,
agents, and employees of the moneys derived froi^^^sale o||^pB&nd or of any
herein designated.

Section 28. General Tax |uant to NR^Kfr.SPb, any sums coming due on

the Bond at any time when there are n^^n hlw^^e Medil^g'erm Debt Service Account
sufficient funds to pay sameishall be prom^fe paid \^^l|ie out ̂ ^e Acquisition Account or
out of a general

including, withoi

purpose of repaying

available.^

temii^»''G3asis)r%iib..for

R^Bfements, there is

Neva

tion

mo

pt of any

, any p

neys

''ids that nia#5

?.^|^urpose

c: a

fe available for such purpose,

eds of C^^ral Taxes legally available therefor. For the

i^from an^Sch fund or funds (other than any moneys
^M6h Bond Requirements on other than a
mg funds for the payment of the Bond

 separate accoimt designated as the "City of Fallon,

sneral Obligati(Sa|.imitec '

Debt Servi^^^coimt" (the "Mfedium-Term Debt Service Accotmt"). Pursuant to NRS 350.592,
a-

Medium-Term Bond, Series 2020, Medium-Term

350.594, 350. /except to the extent other funds are legally available therefor.

there shall be duly^^^^^minediately after the issuance of the Bond and annually thereafter,
imtil all of the Bond Ri^^ements shall have been fully paid, satisfied and discharged, a General
Tax on all property, both real and personal, subject to taxation within the botmdaries of the City,

including the net proceeds of mines, fully sufficient to reimburse such fund or funds for any such

amotmts temporarily advanced to pay such initial installment of interest, and to pay the interest

on the Bond becoming due after such initial installment, and to pay and retire the Bond as they

23



thereafter become due at maturity as herein provided, after there are made due allowances for

probable delinquencies. The proceeds of such annual levies shall be duly credited to the

Medium-Term Debt Service Account for the payment of such Bond Requirements. In the

preparation of the annual budget or appropriation resolution or ordinance for the City, the
Council shall first make proper provisions through the levy of sufficient General Taxes for the

payment of the interest on and the retirement of the principal of the fAed indebtedness of the
City, including, without limitation, the Bond, subject to tl^^^fation imposed by NRS
354.59811, 354.59813, 354.59815, 354.5982 and 361.4^^l^^tion2, Art. 10, State
Constitution, and the amount of money necessary for t^^^i^ose shall^^^first charge against
all such revenues received by the City.

Section 29. Priorities for Bond. As f^Pled in NRS 361.463, in any^^ap in which
the total General Taxes levied against the property^|,e City J^^I overlapping unif^^thin the
boundaries of the City exceeds the lu:mJ|tions imposed^^^'Sb 1.453, 354.59811, 354.59813

' the SMiand 354.5982 or a lesser or greater an^i

year, and it shall become necessary by f^an reduc
|Oard of Examiners in any fiscal

" levies made by any and all

such units, the reductions.so;:mde shall b^|a Geij^^^es lev^^y the City for purposes
other than the paymej^^^bnd'^^liirement^^^^^ond anl'^ter bonded indebtedness of the
City including thereon, General "ifees levied for the payment of such bonded
indebtedness and th^^^est the^^^^pU always a priority over General Taxes levied by

in order to comply with the

3^^^811,354.598l5^d 354.5982.
^^^Section 30. db^latio^|4.evies. Such General Taxes shall be levied and collected in

the s^^anner and at t^^e ti^^ other taxes are levied and collected, and the proceeds
thereof fo^^^ 3oiid shall b^fept in the Medium-Term Debt Service Account, which shall be

•M- JMM
£«,,^ose payment of principal and interest, respectively, as the sameused for no o

fall due.

Section 31. Ulfe of General Fmd. Any sums becoming due on the Bond at any time
when there are on hand from such General Taxes (and any other available moneys) insufficient

funds to pay the same shall be promptly paid when due fi-om general funds on hand belonging to
the City, reimbursement to be made for such general funds in the amounts so advanced when the

General Taxes herein provided for have been collected, pursuant to NRS 350.596.

24



Section 32. Use of Other Funds. Nothing in this Ordinance prevents the City from

applying any funds (other than General Taxes) that may be available for that purpose to the

payment of the Bond Requirements as the same, respectively, mature, and upon such payments,

the levy or levies herein provided may thereupon to that extent be diminished, pursuant to NRS

350.598.

Section 33. Legislative Duties. In accordance with NRS 3^B^2, it shall be the dutv

of the Coimcil armually, at the time and in the manner provided for levying other General

Taxes of the City, if such action shall be necessary to effec ie p^^|ions of this Ordinance,
to ratify and carry out the provisions hereof with referej^^^o *the levy ̂ HiQllection of General
Taxes; and the Coimcil shall require the officers c^^^City to levy, exte^Spd collect such
General Taxes in the manner provided by law ft^^ purpose of creating funds'^S^e payment

1 ^ "of the principal of the Bond and the interest there6%;§.uch G^^'Taxes, when colled shall

be kept for and applied only to the pajgnent of the prin||^i#amd the interest on the Bond as

hereinbefore specified.

Section 34. Appropriation of G%ral^^s. In acco^^ce with NRS 350.602, there
is hereby specially appr^^ated the proc^. of tMIto the payment of such

""not be'tippled nor the General Taxespropriatiprincipal and inteies^

Requirements of the^^^il have bp^&iolly paid.

own

5ven

posq)oned or du^to^ed (except herein <!^^wise expressly provided) until the Bond

ih

covenants and agrees with each and every

ftimet^^^pfl

The^ropct shall be completed without delay; and

B. Ci^^nll make the principal and interest payments on the
Bond at t^^Jace, on the d^p and in the manner specified according to the true intent and
meaning herebfi^^ A'?'"''

Section 36. ̂^^^Mpfyenant. The City covenants for the benefit of the owner of the
Bond that it will not tMce any action or omit to take any action with respect to the Bond, the
proceeds thereof, any other funds of the City or any facilities financed or refinanced with the

proceeds of the Bond if such action or omission (i) would cause the interest on the Bond to lose

its exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the

Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Tax Code"), or (ii) would cause interest on the

25



Bond to lose its exclusion from alternative minimxim taxable income as defined in

Section 55(b)(2) of the Tax Code. The foregoing covenant shall remain in full force and effect

notwithstanding the payment in full or defeasance of the Bond until the date on which all

obligations of the City in fulfilling the above covenant imder the Tax Code have been met.

Section 37. Defeasance. When all Bond Requirements of the Bond have been duly

paid, the pledge and lien and all obligations hereunder as to ^gfiBond shall thereby be

discharged and the Bond shall no longer be deemed to be Outsta^^E^PWithin the meaning of this
Ordinance. There shall be deemed to be such due payment^^^n:^^^^ has placed in escrow
or in trust with a trust bank located within or without

the known minimum yield available for such

an amou^^ifficient (including

Federal Secufii fein which such

as the same become due to the final maturity of tlii

due before the respective times on which the proce©

with a schedule established and agreedfi^^^#)etween the

amount wholly or in part may be initially invesl^^ meet all Bond Requireme^^fthe Bond,

feral Securities sf become

creation of the escrow or trust, or the

option of the holders therepl^^o assure av^lliility

pmposes of this ~ pities"

callable for redei

Section 38

prior to thei^^turities
er AssiMPPes. The

purpose ance,

shall be needed, in accordance

fe,,and the bank at the time of the

shain^^^bject to redemption at the
tc^^fet the schedule. For the

tide oni^i^feral Securities which are not

t at the option of the owner thereof,

when duly executed and delivered for the

Wa. warranty by and on behalf of the City

pwn^»f the Bond that ihe Bond has been issued for a valuable

sration in full

|t|on 39. Ownlw^ghts.''€^ti owner of the Bond issued hereimder shall be entitled
to all of tî ^^ileges, rights^d remedies provided or permitted in the City Bond Law and the
Bond Act, and'^^^^erwise^^^ded or permitted by law or in equity or by other sPPtes, except
as otherwise provic but subject to the provisions herein concerning the pledge of and

the covenants and the ilflier contractual provisions concerning the Pledged Revenues and the

proceeds of the Bond.

Section 40. Owners Enforcement. Nothing herein affects or impairs the right of any

owner of the Bond to enforce the payment of the Bond Requirements or the obligation of the

26



City to pay the Bond Requirements of the Bond to the owner thereof at the time and the place

expressed in the Bond.

Section 41. Amendment of Ordinance. This Ordinance may be amended or

supplemented by instruments adopted by the City, without receipt by the City of any additional

consideration, but with the written consent of the owner of the then Outstanding Bond at the time

of the adoption of the amendatory or supplemental instrument. No such instrument shall permit:

A. A change in the maturity or in the terms of redemption of the

principal or any installment thereof of any Outstanding Bond or any installment of interest

thereon;

B. A reduction in the principal amount of the Bond or the rate of

interest thereon, without the written consent of the owner of the then Outstanding Bond; or

C. A reduction of the pnncipal amount or percentages or otherwise

affecting the description of the Bond or the consent of the owner of which is required for any

modification or amendment; or . .

D. The modificatiori~<.of, or other .action which materially and

prejudicially affects the rights or privileges of the owner of the Bond, without the written consent

of the owner of the then Outstanding Bond. -

Whenever the City proposes to amend or modify this Ordinance under the provisions

hereof, it shall cause notice of the proposed amendment to be mailed within 30 days to the

insurer of the Bond, if any, and each owner of the Bond. The notice shall briefly set forth the

nature of the proposed amendment and shall state that a copy of the proposed amendatory

instrument is on file in the office of the City Clerk for public inspection.

•Whenever at any time within one year from the date of such notice there shall be filed in

the office of the City Clerk an instrument or instruments executed by the insurer of the Bond, if

any, or the owner of the then Outstanding Bond, which instrument or instruments shall refer to

the proposed amendatory instrument described in the notice and shall specifically consent to and

approve the adoption of the instrument; thereupon, but not otherwise, the Council may adopt the

amendatory instrument and the instrument shall become effective.

Any Bond authenticated and delivered after the effective date of any action taken as

provided in this Section may bear a notation by endorsement or otherwise in form approved by

the City as to the action. If any Bond so authenticated and delivered shall bear such notation.



then upon demand of the owner of any Bond outstanding at such effective date and upon

presentation of his Bond, suitable notation shall be made on the Bond as to any such action. If

the City so determines, a new Bond so modified as in the opinion of the City to conform to such

action shall be prepared, registered and delivered and upon demand of the owner of any Bond

then outstanding, shall be exchanged without cost to the owner of the Bond then outstanding

upon surrender of such Bond. , ̂1%.

Section 42. Ordinance Irrepealable. After the delive^yi^mfe Bond, the provisions of
the Bond Act and of this Ordinance shall be a part of the ii|^^^aK^^^toct between the City
and the owners of the Bond issued hereunder.

Section 43. Delegated Powers. The of^^^of the City hereby'^̂ l^uthorized and

directed to take all action necessary or appropri®^^^ffectuate the provisions on&Drdinance,
-A.. :

including, without limiting the generality of the for^rog:

A. TheprinJ^oftheBond^M|y''
B. The exet^p^^^ such certiH^^s as may be required by the

Purchaser relating to the signing of the

the assessed valuation of^e"!taxable prop©^ in an,^

General Taxes levied^f"^'^"'^^
the receipt of thq

income taxation,

connectic

and idei^ty of the officials of the City,

^d|btedl^p of the City, the rate of

purchase

letenes

the râ phe delivery of the Bond and
ption of interest on the Bond from federal

information provided to the Purchaser in

le Bond, and if it is in accordance with

pending or threatened, affecting the validity of the Bond or

the completei^^fcr ac of such information, the assembly and dissemination of
financ1^»d other informa^^conceili^ the City and the Bond.

PeplacSent of Registrar or Paving Agent. If the Registrar or Paying
Agent initially ^inted ̂^fcider shall resign, or if the Clerk/Treasurer shall reasonably
determine that it interests of the City to appoint a successor Registrar or Paying

Agent, the Clerk/Treaswer may, upon notice mailed to the owner of the Bond at his or her

address last shown on the registration records, appoint a successor Registrar or Paying Agent, or

both. No resignation or dismissal of the Registrar or Paying Agent may take effect xmtil a

successor is appointed. It shall not be required that the same person or institution serve as both

28



Registrar and Paying Agent hereunder, but the City shall have the right to have the same person

or institution serve as both Registrar and Paying Agent.

Any successor by merger with the Registrar and Paying Agent is automatically appointed

as Registrar and Paying Agent hereunder without any further action of the Council, as long as the

successor otherwise is qualified to act as Registrar and Paying Agent pursuant to this Section.

Any City officer, bank, trust company or national banking association into which the Registrar

and/or Paying Agent or its successor may be converted, merged or with which it may be

consolidated, or to which it may sell or otherwise transfer all or substantially all of its corporate

trust business shall be the successor of the Registrar and/or Paying Agent under this Ordinance

with the same rights, powers, duties and obligations and subject to the same restrictions,

limitations, and liabilities as its predecessor, all without the execution or filing of any papers or

any further act on the part of any of the parties hereto, anything herein to the contrary

notwithstanding.

Section 45. Implied Repealer. All bylaws, orders, resolutions and ordinances, or parts

thereof, in conflict with this Ordinance, are hereby repealed. This repealer shall not be construed

to revive any bylaw, order, resolution or ordinance, or part thereof, heretofore repealed.

Section 46. Authentication. This Ordinance, immediately on its passage and adoption,

shall be recorded in the official records of the City kept for that purpose, shall be authenticated

by the signature of the Mayor of the City, shall be attested by the Clerk, and the seal of the City

shall be affixed thereto.

v  Section 47. . Publication and Effective Date. The Council has expressed in the

preambles to this Ordinance that it pertains to the sale, issuance, or payment of the Bond, and

that this instrument may accordingly be adopted as if an emergency now exists. This Ordinance

shall become effective after its publication by its title only, together with a statement that

typewritten copies of this Ordinance are available for inspection by interested parties at the office

of the Clerk/Treasurer, such publication to be made in a newspaper or newspapers published in

Churchill County and which is of general circulation in the City and such publication to be in

substantially the following form:



(Form of Publication of Adoption of Ordinance)

BILL NO.

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
FALLON, NEVADA, DESIGNATED AS THE "2020 MEDIUM-
TERM BOND ORDINANCE;" PROVIDING FOR THE
ISSUANCE BY THE CITY OF ITS GENERAL OBLIGATION
(LIMITED TAX) MEDIUM-TERM BOND, SERIES 2020;
PROVIDING COVENANTS, CONDITIONS, AND OTHER
DETAILS CONCERNING THE BOND, THE PROJECT AND
GENERAL TAX PROCEEDS; RATIFYING ACTION
PREVIOUSLY TAKEN AND PERTAINING TO THE
FOREGOING BY THE CITY AND ITS OFFICERS AND

EMPLOYEES; PROVIDING FOR ADOPTION AS IF AN
EMERGENCY EXISTS; AND PROVIDING MATTERS
RELATING THERETO.

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the above entitled Ordinance was proposed
by Councilman at the regular meeting of the City of Fallon City
Council held on December 7, 2020, and was passed and adopted at the regular meeting of the
City of Fallon City Council held on December 7,. 2020, by the following vote of the City
Council:

Those Voting Aye:

Those Voting Nay:

Those Ahfent:

2020.

This Ordinanc^e snail be in full force and effect from and after the day of December,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City Council of the City of Fallon, Nevada has caused
this Ordinance to be published by title only.

DATED this December , 2020.

Ken Tedford



Attest:

Mayor

/$/ Sean Richardson

City Clerk/Treasurer

(End of Form of Publication of Adoption of Ordinance)



Section 48. Severability. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this

Ordinance shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or
unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall in no way effect any
remaining provisions of this Ordinance.

(SEAL)

Attest:

Mayor

City of Fallen, Nevada _
This Ordinance shall be in force and effect from and after the day of December, 2020. -



STATE OF NEVADA )
)  ss.

COUNTY OF CHURCHILL )

I, Sean Richardson, the duly chosen, qualified and acting City Clerk/Treasurer of City of
Fallon, Nevada (the "City") do hereby certify:

1. The foregoing pages are a true, perfect and a complete copy of an ordinance
adopted by the Council at a lawful meeting of the Council held on December 7, 2020, as recorded
in the official record book of the proceedings of the City kept in my office.

2. The members of the Council voted on the introduction of the ordinance on
December 7, 2020 as follows:

Those Voting Aye:

Those Voting Nay:

Those Absent:

Kelly Frost
Karla Kent "

James Richardson

.#

3.

forth above.

The members of the Council voted on the final passage of the ordinance as set

4. All members of the Council were given due and proper notice of the meeting.
Pursuant to NRS 241.020 and Governor Sisolak's Declaration of Emergency Directive 006 entered
on March 22, 2020, and extended by Emergency Directive 016 entered on April 29, 2020, by
Emergency Directive 018 entered on May 7, 2020, by Emergency Directive 021 entered on May
28, 2020, by Emergency Directive 026 entered on June 29, 2020 and by Emergency Directive 029
entered on July 31, 2020, written notice of the meeting was given not later than 9:00 a.m. on the
third working day before the meeting including in the notice the time, place, location, and agenda
of the meeting:

(a) By posting a copy of the notice at least three working days before
the meeting on the City's website; at the principal office of the Council, or if there is no principal
office, at the bui|4i,ng in which the meeting is to be held; and on the State of Nevada public notice
website; and

,(b) By mailing a copy of the notice to each person, if any, who has
requested notices of meetings of the Council in compliance with NRS 241.020(3)(b) by United
States Mail, or if feasible and agreed to by the requestor, by electronic mail.

5. Upon request, the Council provides at no charge, at least one copy of the agenda
for its public meetings, any proposed ordinance or regulation which will be discussed at the public
meeting, and any other supporting materials provided to the Council for an item on the agenda.



except for certain confidential materials and materials pertaining to closed meetings, as provided
by law.

6. A copy of the notice so given of the meeting of the Council held on December
7, 2020 is attached to this certificate as Exhibit A.

7. A copy of the affidavit of publication of the Ordinance by title after its adoption is
attached to this certificate as Exhibit B.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this December 7, 2020.

^Sean Richardson, City Clerk/Treasurer



Exhibit A

(Attach Copy of Notice of December 7,2020 Meeting)



Exhibit B

(Attach Affidavit of Publication of Adoption of Bond Ordinance)



7, 2020

Affenda Item

Consideration and possible adoption of Bill No. 785 as
Ordinance No. 766: An Ordinance of the City Council of
the City of Fallon, Nevada, Designated as the "2020
Medium-Term Bond Ordinance;" Providing for the
Issuance by the City of its General Obligation (Limited
Tax) Medium-Term Bond, Series 2020; Providing
Covenants, Conditions, and Other Details Concerning the
Bond, the Project and General Tax Proceeds; Ratifying
Action Previously Taken and Pertaining to the Foregoing
by the City and its Officers and Employees; Providing for
Adoption as if an Emergency Exists; and Providing
Matters Relating Thereto. (For possible action)



CITY OF FALLON

REQUEST EGR COUNCIL ACTION

Agenda Item No. 8

DATE SUBMITTED: November 30, 2020

AGENDA DATE REQUESTED: December 7, 2020

TO: The Honorable City Council

FROM: Robert Erquiaga, Chief of Staff
Sean Richardson, City Clerk/Treasurer

SUBJECT TITLE: Consideration and possible adoption of Bill No. 785 as Ordinance No. 766:
An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Fallon, Nevada, Designated as the "2020
Medium-Term Bond Ordinance;" Providing for the Issuance by the City of its General
Obligation (Limited Tax) Medium-Term Bond, Series 2020; Providing Covenants, Conditions,
and Other Details Concerning the Bond, the Project and General Tax Proceeds; Ratifying Action
Previously Taken and Pertaining to the Foregoing by the City and its Officers and Employees;
Providing for Adoption as if an Emergency Exists; and Providing Matters Relating Thereto. (Eor
possible action)

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED: (Check One)

(  ) Resolution (X) Ordinance
(  ) Formal Action/Motion ( ) Other

RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION: Motion to adopt Bill No. 785 as Ordinance No. 766:
An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Fallon, Nevada, Designated as the "2020
Medium-Term Bond Ordinance;" Providing for the Issuance by the City of its General
Obligation (Limited Tax) Medium-Term Bond, Series 2020; Providing Covenants, Conditions,
and Other Details Concerning the Bond, the Project and General Tax Proceeds; Ratifying Action
Previously Taken and Pertaining to the Foregoing by the City and its Officers and Employees;
Providing for Adoption as if an Emergency Exists; and Providing Matters Relating Thereto.

DISCUSSION: The City Council passed and adopted Resolution No. 20-09 at its regular meeting
on November 2, 2020, which authorized medium-term obligations in an amount of up to
$2,000,000 in order to finance improvements to City Hall and the City's Public Works Building,
the construction of a new Fixed Base Operator Building at the City's Airport, and refinancing of
certain outstanding obligations of the City. Subsequently, City staff forwarded Resolution No.
20-09 and its supporting materials to the Nevada Department of Taxation for their review and
approval. The City received said approval on or about November 25, 2020.

Utilizing the professional services of Mr. Marty Johnson, Financial Advisor, Mr. Scott Shaver,
Bond Counsel, and Bob Erickson, the City put out a Request for Financing dated November 4,
2020. The City received multiple bids in response to the Request for Financing. City staff



recommends approval and adoption of this Ordinance so that City staff can issue the City of
Fallon, Nevada General Obligation (Limited Tax) Medium-Term Bond, Series 2020 and close
the transaction, and move forward with the proposed projects and refinancing of the City's
vacuum truck lease/purchase agreement.

FISCAL IMPACT: Medium-Term Bonds in the aggregate principal amount not to exceed
$2,000,000

FUNDING SOURCE: Electric Enterprise Fund, Water Enterprise Fund, Sewer Enterprise Fund,
Sanitation Enterprise Fund, Landfill Enterprise Fund, Water Treatment Enterprise Fund, Airport
Fund and General Fund

PREPARED BY: Robert Erquiaga, Chief of Staff

TO BE PRESENTED BY: Robert Erquiaga and Sean Richardson



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

FALLON, NEVADA, DESIGNATED AS THE "2020 MEDIUM-
TERM BOND ORDINANCE;" PROVIDING FOR THE

ISSUANCE BY THE CITY OF ITS GENERAL OBLIGATION

(LIMITED TAX) MEDIUM-TERM BOND, SERIES 2020;
PROVIDING COVENANTS, CONDITIONS, AN^OTHER
DETAILS CONCERNING THE BOND, THE ̂ ^^T AND
GENERAL TAX PROCEEDS; RATIF^^Bl ACTION
PREVIOUSLY TAKEN AND PERTA^pf'^? THE
FOREGOING BY THE CITY AND IT^S^FIC^^AND
EMPLOYEES; PROVIDING FOR ̂ ^pPTION AS
EMERGENCY EXISTS; AND .^SviDING MATT
RELATING THERETO.

WHEREAS, the City of Fallen in the

respectively) is a political subdivision, of the State

under the provisions of chapter 266 M^lMgvada Revi^

laws of the State; and

WHEREAS, the

Lease/Purchase Agrci

"Prior Lease Agrci

WHEREAI

City on afflidatek^nd

has previol

issue

Building

|he "City" and'i^^«'State,"

iied and consolidated as a city

Itatutes ("NRS") and the general

det^med a Federally Taxable

of Marc^^^pSlO wiS^^s Bancorporation, N.A. (the
financ«iie costs oi^^^cuum truck for use by the City; and

l^greement ̂ ^bject to prepayment at the option of the

S 350.087 to^^B.095, inclusive (the "Note Act"), the City is
enmii^ations to finance improvements to City Hall and the City's

nstru5®tof a new fixed base operator building at the City's

vement Project") and to refinance the Prior Lease Agreement

lectively with the Improvement Project, the "Project"); and

lo the Note Act, the City authorized to issue, as evidence thereof,

or bonds which shall not be paid in whole or in part from a levy

of a special tax exempt from the limitations on the levy of ad valorem taxes, but which shall be

paid from other legally available funds of the City (subject to certain Constitutional and statutory

tax limitations), which must mature not later than 10 years after the date of issuance and must

ai

Public

airport

(the "Refundi^

WHEREA

negotiable medium-tei



bear interest at a rate or rates which do not exceed by more than 3% the "Index of Twenty

Bonds" which was most recently published before bids for their purchase are received; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 350.087, the City Council of the City (the "Council")

determined to publish a notice (the "Notice"), of its intention to authorize and to issue medium-

term obligations in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $2,000,000, in a newspaper of

general circulation in the City and an affidavit of such publication is on file in the office of the

City Clerk (the "Clerk"); and

WHEREAS, the Council adopted by at least a two-thirds majority a resolution

authorizing medium-term obligations in the maximum principal amount of $2,000,000 to finance

the Project (the "Authorization Resolution") which contained a finding by the Council that the

public interest requires medium-term obligations and a statement of the facts upon which the

finding was based, which vote was taken at least 10 days after the publication of the Notice; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 350.089 and relevant provisions of the Nevada

Administrative Code, the Council caused a certified copy of the Authorization Resolution and

supporting documents to be submitted to the Executive Director of the Department of Taxation

of the State of Nevada (the "Department of Taxation") for his or her approval; and

WHEREAS,' the City received the approval of the Department of Taxation for such

medium-term obligations a copy of such approval being attached hereto as follows:

(Attach Approval of Department of Taxation)



STtVESISOLAK

Governor
JAMES DEVOLLD

C/ia/r, Nevada Tax Commission
MELANIE YOUNG
Exeatiive Director

November 25,2020

Sean Richardson
City Clerk Treasurer
City of Failon
55 West Williams Avenue
Failon, NV 89406

STATE OF NEVADA

DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION
Web Site: https://taK.nv.gov

1550 Co'iege Parkway, Suite 115
Carson Cty. Nevada 89706-7937

Phone: (7751 684-2000 Fax; (775) 684-2020

US VEGAS OFFICE
Grant Sawyer Office Suifding, SuitelBOO

555 E. Washington Avenue
Las Vegasi Nevada 89101

Phonit: (7021486-2300 Fax: (702) 486-2373

RENO OFFICE

4600 Kietzke Lane

Building L, Suite 235
Reno, Nevada 89502
Phone: (775) 687-9999
Fax: (775) 688-1303

HENDERSON OFFICE
2550 Paseo Verde Parkway, Suite 180

Henderson, Nevada 89074
Phone: (702) 486-2300
Fax: (702) 486-3377

Re: City of Fallen
MTO - Medium-Term Obligation (Bonds)
2,000,000 for financing a new Airport FBO Building, Remodeling Public Works Building & City
Hall, and Refinancing Vacuum Truck

Dear Mr, Richardson:

The Department of Taxation has received a request from the City of Failon for the approval of a
Medium-Term Obligation not to exceed $2,000,000. This medium-term obligation will be used to
finance improvements to City Hall and the City's Public Works Building, the construction of a new fixed
rase operator building at the City's airport and refinancing certain outstanding obligations of the City,
piis Medium-Term Obligation is to be repaid from the operating revenues generated from the City's
Electric, Water, Sewer, Sanitation, Landfill, Water Treatment and Airport Enterprise Funds and the
General Fund. The term for this obligation is not to exceed ten (10) years after the date of execution,
and the interest rate shall not exceed by more than 3 percent the "Index of Twenty Bonds" most
recently published in The Bond Buver" before bids are received or negotiated offer is accepted The
annual interest rate Is estimated to be 2.50%.

The request has been reviewed as required by NRS 350.089 and is APPROVED.

Pursuant to NRS 350.089, the approval must be recorded in the minutes of the governing board at the
next meeting. You are reminded the financing must be secured within eighteen months of receipt of this
approval.

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact Kellie Grahmann, Budget Analyst in the
Local Government Finance Section at (775) 684-2065 or at karahmann@tax.state.nv.us.

Sincerely,

Melanie Young
Executive Director
Nevada Department of Taxation



WHEREAS, the approval of the Department of Taxation as set forth in the preambles

hereof is hereby recorded in the minutes of the Council as required by NRS 350.089; and

WHEREAS, the City has not previously utilized any of the authority so approved by the

Department of Taxation; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Authorization Resolution, the Coimcil ordered the medium-
#•term obligations to be offered for sale in the form of medium-term boi^Wid authorized the Citv

Clerk/Treasurer (the "Clerk/Treasurer") to arrange for the salefpS^uch medium-term bonds

subject to, among other conditions, adoption by the City of^f^^rl^nce specifying the bond

terms and details and approving their sale; and
"/i

id to be issuedWHEREAS, the Council hereby determine^^^^tthe bond herein auf'^

shall be designated the "City of Fallon, Nevac^^lpeneral Obligation (Limited^^^) Medium-

Term Bond, Series 2020" in an aggregate princlj^iamount^^to exceed $2,000'^00 (the
"Bond"); and

WHEREAS, the Council has ^ and hereb^^ares and determines that legally
available funds of the City will at least eq^ requirei^^ach year for the payment of
interest on and the principal^ofthe Bond; aild^

WHEREAS,
.-'5

determines that tJ ^ ̂

Project financed wr

imum term

rocee

S, the^

"slccordfflS^with

:  ;■ '• ■

S 356|^^^Ee CouiMl^as determined and hereby
e Bondl^^ not exceed the estimated useful life of the
Bond; an^^|.

to and hereby determines to issue the

(revisions of NRS 350.500 through 350.720, and all lawsBon

atory thereof, cite4ln NRS'^0,500 by the short title "Local Government Securities Law'
ct"); and

AS, the Co
W

hereby elects to have the provisions of NRS Chapter 348 (the
"SupplementaJnll^d Act") to the Bond; and

WHEREAS^^®(^uncil is not authorized to levy general ad valorem taxes (the
"General Taxes") to pa^' the principal of or interest on the Bond which are exempt from the
limitations of any statutes of the State; and

WHEREAS, any General Taxes levied for the purpose of paying principal or interest on
the Bond will be subject to the limitations contained in the Constitution and the statutes of the



State, including, without limitation, the limitations on General Taxes contained in NRS Sections

354.59811,354.59813, 354.59815, 354.5982 and 361.453; and

WHEREAS, the Coimcil is therefore authorized and empowered by the City Bond Law,

the Note Act, the approval of the Department of Taxation, and the Bond Act, without any further

preliminaries:

A. To issue and sell the City's Bond; and

B.

with the powers authorized therein or as otherwise expressly^f

WHEREAS, after a sale of the Bond purs'

To exercise the incidental powers providedfii^e Bond Act in connection

^-,jrein; and

kto' NRS 3^15 to 350.195, the
Clerk/Treasurer is hereby authorized to sell to the best b^l^, therefor (the
'Purchaser"), and accept a binding bid for the Boi

WHEREAS, die Bond is to bear interest a1?^i)66:#rates orjatds per anniun prowled in the

bond purchase proposal submitted the Purchasert^ii lond Purchase Proposal") and
accepted by the Clerk/Treasurer, whi^^fe^ust not ex^&,by more than 3% the Index of

Twenty Bonds most recently published i^l^e l^^fe^yer priS^^^e time bids were received
w.for the Bond, and are to b^^old at a pricl^ijial to, t^^^j^|)al d^unt thereof, plus accrued

interest to the date^^^^^^ery"^^^^ Bond,'^^^^^ess a ̂ ^^iint not exceeding 9% of the
principal amoxmt.|^^f or plus a j^^ium, all'%®pecified in a certificate dated on or after the
sale date of the Bon^lfte,"Certifi^^fcf the Clerls isurer"); and

lS, the^ fefeby declares that each of the limitations

and jg^ycbnditioS^fcsithe is^^ce of the Bond in the City Bond Law, the Note Act, the Bond

AS^^e Supplementad^^^d AS^pd in any other relevant act of the State or the Federal
Govei^fc|t, has been met^M^pursu^teo NRS 350.708 this determination of the Council that
the limitatiQ^iin the Bond .^Rhave been met shall be conclusive in the absence of fraud or

arbitrary or grc^&use of di^^tion; and

WHEREAS^^^MEncil has determined and does hereby declare that each of the
limitations and other com'ditions to the issuance of the Bond in the Bond Act, and in any other

relevant act of the State or the Federal Government, has been met and pursuant to Section

350.708 of the Bond Act, this determination of the Coimcil that the limitations in the Bond Act

have been met shall be conclusive in the absence of fraud or arbitrary or gross abuse of

discretion; and



WHEREAS, the Council has determined and does hereby declare:

A. This Ordinance pertains to the sale, issuance and payment of the Bond;

B. Such declaration shall be conclusive in the absence of fraud or gross abuse of

discretion in accordance with the provisions of Subsection 2 of NRS 350.579; and

C. This Ordinance may accordingly be adopted as if^plfemergency now exists by

an affirmative vote of all of the voting members of the Cou^^^p[^cluding from any such
computation any vacancy on the Council and any member thergg

vote), and this Ordinance may become effective at any ti^e

City may go into effect.

vote only to break a tie

tency ordinance of the

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY C0|^CIL OF THE CITY OF F

ORDAIN:

Section 1. Short Title. This and may be cited as the "2020

N DOES

Medium-Term Bond Ordinance" (here:

Section 2. Acceptance of Pumnase

accept the Bond Purchase ̂

inance").

submitteia'j)y

d cond

action

ecified Ke:

The MeSic/Treasurer is authorized to

and eUtedute the Certificate of the

pfore taken by the Council and the officers

md toward the issuance, sale and delivery

Clerk/Treasurer, subj;

Section 3. ̂^^atification.

and employees of th^Bfe directs

of the Bai^i^^^d. a^

"""fecesaMlf Project and Bond: Authorization of Project. It is necessary

ano^^^ best interests^^^ Cd^^, its officers, and the inhabitants of the City, that the City
effect^^^&oject and de^^^vholly^^in part the cost thereof by the issuance of the Bond
therefor, a^^^^hereby so d^gnined and declared. The Council hereby authorizes the Project.

Sectio^^^^^ Aut^^^tion of Bond. For the purpose of providing funds to pay all or a
portion of the cost^jj^^^iect. the City shall issue the "City of Fallon, Nevada, General
Obligation (Limited T^f Medium-Term Bond, Series 2020" in the aggregate principal amount
set forth in the Certificate of the Clerk/Treasurer (not to exceed $2,000,000). The Bond shall be

issued in the form substantially as set forth in Section 21 of this Ordinance.

Section 6. Ordinance to Constitute Contract. In consideration of the purchase and the

acceptance of the Bond by those who shall own the same from time to time, the provisions

5



hereof shall be deemed to be and shall constitute contracts between the City and the owners from

time to time of the Bond.

Section 7. General Obligation. All of the Bond, as to the principal thereof and the

interest thereon (the "Bond Requirements"), shall constitute a general obligation of the City,

which hereby pledges its full faith and credit for their payment.

Sections. Payment of the Bond. The Bond Requireme&;iof the Bond shall be

payable from any monies legally available therefor, and provisiqi|.^f the payment of the Bond

Requirements of the Bond shall be made as provided in th^^pfe A^grovided, however, that
General Taxes levied for the purpose of paying the pr^ppl 5f or interef^^ the Bond shall be
subject to the limitations contained in the Cons^i^^irf and statutes of Ib^^j^te, including,
without limitation, the limitations on the levy ̂ ^^eneral Taxes imposed by b5[^|354.59811,
354.59813, 354.59815, 354.5982 and 361.453. TliiN^s^ is not^^brized to levy G^^d Taxes

. . . .

exempt from the Imiitations of any of .said statutes to piay:^^|&bnd Requirements of the Bond.
. V'

The City hereby irrevocably covenanfsi^^ registered "^igr of the Bond from time to time

that it will make sufficient provisions

Bond, when due.

ui^|^^|et to p^l^C Bond Requirements of the

Section 9. Jl^tflati6^^:^n Secuii^i^i^^pavrnenl^febe Bond is not secured by an

.ie*0k^,

encumbrance, mc^^e, or other ̂ dge of of the City, except for the proceeds of

^ged for ̂ fc?avment of the Bond. No property of theGeneral Taxes and am ,tther mot

:h exd ^l^eited or taken in payment of the Bond.

lO^^^^Mo Re^^se Against Officdis and Agents. No recourse shall be had for
thd^^^ent of the Bona^^mren^^ of the Bond or for any claim based thereon or otherwise
upon ̂ ^^rdinance or any^&er in^^^ent relating thereto, against any individual member of
the Counra^^^y officer o^&er agent of the Council or City, past, present or future, either
directly or irS^^^ throi^^^^e Council or the City, or otherwise, whether by virtue of any
constitution, statuS^f^^^Jf law, or by the enforcement of a penalty or otherwise, all such
liability, if any, being of the acceptance of the Bond and as a part of the consideration of its

issuance specially waived and released.

Section 11. Bond Details. The Bond shall be issued in fully registered form, i.e.,

registered as to both principal and interest, in compliance with Section 149 of the Tax Code, and

the regulations of the Secretary of the Treasury thereunder. The Bond shall be dated as of the



date of delivery of the Bond and shall be issued as a single bond in the aggregate principal

amount thereof. The Bond shall bear interest from its date until its maturity date at the rate set

forth in the Certificate of the Clerk/Treasurer, calculated on the basis of a 360-day year, payable

semiaimually on March 1 and September 1 of each year commencing on the March 1, or

September 1 first occurring which is at least 45 days after the date of delivery of the Bond;

provided that a Bond which is reissued upon transfer, exchange or replacement shall bear

interest at the rate set forth in the Certificate of the Clerk/Treasuml^^m the most recent interest

payment date to which interest has been paid or duly provid^^^bi^^ interest has been paid,
from the date of the Bond. The Bond shall mature in ead&>f liie design^^l^mounts of principal
and designated dates as set forth in the Certificate ofJ|i^lerk/Treasurer.

The principal of any Bond shall be paya^^K the registered owner therb^^ shown on
the registration records kept by the City Treasur^^, "Regi|t^' upon maturity l^^bof and
upon presentation and surrender at the^p^ce of the Cit^^^^^ir, as "Paying Agent;" provided,
however, that such presentation and si]^^^iftfgquirement^^^-„only apply on the final maturity
date of the Bond and shall not apply to"^ iemption payments. If any

Bond shall not be paid upon"SBch presentat^^and surfWPif'at or attCTtnaturity, it shall continue

to draw interest at the4^:est r^^)me by sk until mf^^cipal thereof is paid in full.

Payment of intere^^ any Bond sh^&e made l^|^e registered owner thereof by check or draft
mailed by the Payin^^ent, on ̂^^feiterest payS^ date (or, if such interest payment date is

not a bu^^ite, on t^fn^^i®ceealtfp^|tti^s c^), to the registered owner thereof, at his

jjjegistration records kept by the Registrar as of the close ofor n®^p®ess a^l._,...

^on the 15th d^^^lhe c^^^ir month next preceding each interest payment date (other
than ̂ ^^ial interest pa^^t dat^^reafler fixed for payment of defaulted interest) (the
"Regular Date"). An^^ch interest not so timely paid or duly provided for shall cease to
be payable to &|fewner th§3^r as shown on the registration records of the Registrar as of the
close of business Record Date and shall be payable to the owner thereof, at his or

her address, as shown b^-^e registration records of the Registrar as of the close of business on a

date fixed to determine the names and addresses of owners for the purpose of paying defaulted

interest (the "Special Record Date"). Such Special Record Date shall be fixed by the Paying

Agent whenever moneys become available for payment of the defaulted interest, and notice of

the Special Record Date shall be given to the owners of the Bond not less than 10 days prior

7



thereto by first-class mail to each such owner as shown on the Registrar's registration records as

of a date selected by the Registrar, stating the date of the Special Record Date and the date fixed

for the payment of such defaulted interest. The Paying Agent may make payments of interest on

any Bond by such alternative means as may be mutually agreed to between the owner of such

Bond and the Paying Agent. All such payments shall be made in lawfiil money of the United

States of America without deduction for any service charges of the P|^^ Agent or Registrar.
Section 12. Prior Redemption.

A. Optional Pnor Redemption. The BondlpEftof' thereof ($1,000 or any

integral multiple), will be subject to redemption prior |(^^turity, at t^^^on of the City, on
and after the dates set forth in the Certificate of tha^H^Treasurer, in whdM^I in part at any

time, at a price equal to the principal amount^^lme Bond, or portion thereof^f^, redeemed,

accrued interest thereon to the redemption date, arid||wemii:^JT^y, computed in a^rdance
with the schedule set forth in the Certificate of the ClerB||de®lrer.

B. Partial Redemptio^'J^nlv a portion^l^tjie Bond is redeemed pursuant to
Wi

this Section 12, the Registrar shall, withoot cha^Wihe owne^^6f-such Bond, authenticate and

issue a replacement Bond forthe unredeemed^ortion;?TO^f. The P^ing Agent shall select the

portion of the Bond to|^redeS
days prior to the re^sAption date).

C.

fund rede feign the

lot at'i^^nes as di^ij^ by the City (but at least 30

tion. its^ond will be subject to mandatory sinking

icate of the Clerk/Treasurer, if any, at a

pra pnce

ition date. As

JO 11 j of the principal amount thereof and accrued interest to the

a^s®||ng fund for the redemption of the Bond, there shall be

redei

rd

deposSBtfito the Mediurn^fem D^^^ervice Accoimt, hereinafter created, on or before the

dates set f^^fa the CertificaSbf the Clerk/Treasurer, a sum which, together with other moneys

available there^® sufScierrtStfredeem (after credit is provided below) on the dates set forth in

the Certificate of ̂^P^pTreasurer, the principal amoxmts of the Bond as set forth in the

Certificate of the Clerl^reasurer.

At the option of the City to be exercised by delivery of a written certificate to the

Registrar not less than sixty days next preceding any sinking fund redemption date, it may

(i) deliver to the Registrar for cancellation the Bond or portions thereof ($1,000 or any integral

multiple thereof) in an aggregate principal amount desired by the City or, (ii) specify a principal

8



amount of the Bond or portions thereof ($1,000 or any integral multiple thereof) which prior to

said date have been redeemed (otherwise than through the operation of the sinking fund) and

canceled by the Registrar and not theretofore applied as a credit against any sinking fund

redemption obligation. The Bond or portion thereof so delivered or previously redeemed shall

be credited by the Registrar at 100% of the principal amount thereof against the obligation of the

City on the sinking fund redemption dates and any excess shall be^^credited against future

sinking fund redemption obligations in such manner as the City ̂ ^^^ines. In the event the City
shall avail itself of the provisions of clause (i) of the this paragraph, the

certificate required by the first sentence of this paragr^^li^heSi be acco^^^ed by the Bond or
portions thereof to be canceled. /"l .

D. Redemption Notice. Ui^^'waived by any owner of ̂ ^®ond to bewaived by any owner of

redeemed, official notice of prior redemption shall given byiflie Registrar on diredlpn of the

City, by fnst-class mail to the registered owner of the of which is to be redeemed at

the address shown on the records o:

prior to the date fixed for redemption.

Bond, or any defect therein;'^^1 not affeci

any other Bond. All

trar, at

e validm

|e redemp

redemptioSprices,

cation

red

d payable u

|||;^ays and not more than 60 days

^^^>S.uch notilfi^o the registered owner of the

s^proce'^ings for the redemption of

datedl state:

outstanding Bond is to be redeemed,

i!,of partial redemption, the principal amoimt) of the Bond to be

become

interest thereon^

K)n the redemption date the redemption price will

■ the Bond or portion thereof called for redemption, and that

2j^*^erue from and after said date, and

the place where the Bond is to be surrendered for payment

of the redemption price^,'%liich place of payment shall be the office of the Paying Agent.

The notice of redemption having been given as aforesaid, such Bond or portion of Bond

so to be redeemed shall, on the redemption date, become due and payable at the redemption price

therein specified, and from and after such date (unless the City shall default in the payment of the

redemption price) such Bond or portion of Bond shall cease to bear interest. Upon surrender of



such Bond for redemption in accordance with said notice, such Bond shall be paid by the Paying

Agent at the redemption price. Installments of interest due prior to the redemption date and, if

the redemption date is an interest payment date, on the redemption date shall be payable as

herein provided for payment of interest. Accrued interest due on any Bond which is called for

prior redemption on a date which is not an interest payment date will be paid at the time the

principal of such Bond is paid. Upon surrender for any partial red^^jHon of any Bond, there

shall be prepared for the registered owner a new Bond of the sa^^Sturity in the amount of the
unpaid principal. Any Bond which has been redeemed sh^^^c^i^ied and destroyed by the
Registrar and shall not be reissued. A certificate by tî e^^istrar that of redemption has
been given as provided in this Section shall be coin^ple as against all jSlS^^and no owner
whose Bond is called for redemption or any othi^pSder of any Bond or any ̂ ®&erson may
object thereto or may object to the cessation of inteF^l^p the ̂ ^^^ition date on the'^und that
he failed actually to receive or see suchciotice of call anSMel^^tion.

Notwithstanding the provision^^l^^jection, any'^^^e of redemption may contain a
Statement that the redemption is conditioi^ upffl^^ceipt bfmPaying Agent of funds on or

'^fee of the Bond so called
for redemption, and such-^^s are ndf^s^^te, sucli^^mption shall be cancelled by

wntten notice to tjs^^er of the B^fi called fof&demption in the same manner as the original
redemption notice waTOiiled.

before the date fixed for tedaaaption sufSci^s^to pawSl^le

lustration provisions herein provided, the
'

the meanmg of and for the pwposes of the Uniformn  .-w-Bond^Mi be fmfj^Btegotiafife

Ct^^^gcial Code - In^i^^ent S^^^ties and each owner shall possess all rights enjoyed by
holdei^S^egotiable instrui|^ts undine Uniform Commercial Code - Investment Securities.

Se^HfcJi4. Regist^ron. Transfer, and Exchange of Bond.
mpjords for the registration and transfer of the Bond shall be kept

by the Registrar, u^gi^&piirrender of any Bond at the Registrar, duly endorsed for transfer or

accompamed by an ass^iment in form satisfactory to the Registrar duly executed by the owner

or his attomey duly authorized in writing, the Registrar shall authenticate and deliver in the name

of the transferee or transferees a new Bond of a like principal amoimt and of the same maturity,

bearing a number not previously assigned. Any Bond may be exchanged at the Registrar for an

equal aggregate principal amount of Bond, as provided in Section 11 hereof. The Registrar shall

10



authenticate and deliver a Bond which the owner making the exchange is entitled to receive,

bearing a number or numbers not previously assigned. Such transfers and exchanges of any

Bond shall be without charge to the owner or any transferee, but the Registrar shall require the

payment by the owner of any Bond requesting exchange or transfer, of any tax or other

governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or transfer.

B. The person in whose name the Bon^,i^Wl be registered on the

registration records kept by the Registrar shall be deemed and,^;^^ded as the absolute owner

thereof for the purpose of payment and for all other purp^^^x^^^^o the extent otherwise
provided in Section 11 hereof with respect to interest pg^aents); and pg^^nt of or on accoimt
of either principal or interest on any Bond shall be jj^^only to or upon theajpitten order of the

owner thereof or his legal representative. All^lpf payments shall be valid iaq^^ffectual to

discharge the liability upon such Bond to the extenfm&e sum ot^i^s so paid.

C.

Registrar shall, upon receipt of such e^

the City may reasonably require, and

If any Bond shall be ld^'f#^6n, destroyed or mutilated, the

^^demnity relating thereto as it or

pa^At^f all ei^^es in connection therewith.
authenticate and deliver ajseplacement

,  >•

number or numbers n^l^^vidi^'

shall have mature astl^^hall have b^^called fo:

Bond be paid by the^^^ Agei^

payi lereof.

su'^^^nd shall be pre'-"
certif^^t'Of such cancelll

Council

Ordinance, the

|vOf a Jl^^^gngate fiSflcipal amount, bearing a
signed, lost, st^i^ldestroyed or mutilated Bond

faemption, the Registrar may direct that such

ieppf replac^fet.

rffevCT'^^P^^r^pnDe surrendered to the Paying Agent upon
rar for transfer,"exchange or replacement as provided herein.

caS^^ by the Paying Agent or Registrar, and counterparts of a

shafl^f? furnished by the Paying Agent or Registrar to the

itwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this

' be transferred in whole to a new owner who is: (i) an affiliate of

the original Purchaser oTihe Bonds; (ii) a "Bank" as defined in Section 3(a)(2) of the Securities

Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"); (iii) an "Accredited Investor" as defined in

Regulation D imder the Securities Act; or (iv) a "Qualified Institutional Buyer" as defined in

Rule 144A under the Securities Act.

11



Section 15. rRESERVEDI.

Section 16. Execution and Authentication.

A. Prior to the execution of any Bond by facsimile signature and

pursuant to NRS 350.638, to the act known as the Uniform Facsimile Signatures of Public

Officials Act, cited as Chapter 351, NRS, and to the Supplemental Bond Act, the Mayor, and the

City Clerk/Treasurer each shall file with the Secretary of State o:

signature certified by him or her imder oath.

B. The Bond shall be signed

behalf of the City with the manual or facsimile signal

a his or her manual

lin the name of and on
Ct"

e Mayor,>^^l be countersigned

and executed with the manual or facsimile signa^^'^'of the City Tret and shall be

cotmtersigned, subscribed, and executed with the^ffiiial or facsinule signature o^^^ity Clerk.

C. No Bond shall be obli^^ry for any ptupose^ipless the
v."/'/.'

certificate of authentication thereon, substantially in the^M^^pfeinafler provided, has been duly
manually executed by the Registrar.

this Ordinance, the Registrar shall be dl

Ordinance.

'iM^yor, the^-
m

and directed to pr^^'and to exectMpie Bond

jticating the^®^d initially delivered pursuant to

i^4„assent^&^';jall of the provisions of this

'^^asurer aM|&fe" Clerk are hereby authorized
:rein provided.

Section 17. of Pred^&sor's Signafte. The Bond bearing the signatures of the

elteciiiOT^i^I.In valid and binding obligations of the City,officers uKSSfliee at the tiffiigt

notvai^^ding iba^^§)re tn^^elivery any or of the persons who executed them shall have

fo fill their respl^|p,offic^:|sJ[^e Mayor, and the City Clerk/Treasurer, at the time of the
a signature ceiffipate r

Si

lik.g to the Bond, may each adopt as and for his or herexecut

own facsi®fe^ignature, th^&simile signature of his or her predecessor in office if such
Swffacsimile signt^fe^pears the Bond.

:

Section 18. ̂^fa^i^table Recital. Pursuant to NRS 350.628, the Bond shall contain a

recital that they are iss®^ pursuant to the Bond Act, which recital shall be conclusive evidence

of the validity of the Bond and the regularity of its issuance.

12



Section 19. State Tax Exemption. Pursuant to NRS 350.710, the Bond, its transfer and

the income therefrom shall forever be and remain free and exempt from taxation by the State or

any subdivision thereof, except for the tax on estates imposed pursuant to NRS Chapter 375A

and the tax on generation skipping transfers imposed pursuant to NRS Chapter 375B.

Section 20. Bond Delivery. After registration by the Registrar and after their

execution and authentication as provided herein, the Registrar shall cause the Bond to be

delivered to the Purchaser, upon payment being made in accordance with the terms of their sale.

Section 21. Bond Form. Subject to the provisions of this Ordinance, the Bond shall be

in substantially the following form, with such omissions, insertions, endorsements, and

variations as may be required by the circumstances, be required or permitted by this Ordinance,

or be consistent with this Ordinance and necessary or appropriate to conform to the rules and

requirements of any governmental authority or any usage or requirement of law with respect
thereto:

13



(Forai of Bond)

THE REGISTERED OWNER OF THIS BOND ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT

THIS BOND MAY ONLY BE TRANSFERRED TO A NEW OWNER WHO IS: (I) AN
AFFILIATE OF THE ORIGINAL PURCHASER OF THIS BOND; (H) A 'RANK" AS
DEFINED IN SECTION 3(A)(2) OF THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED
(THE "SECURITIES ACT"); (HI) AN "ACCREDITED INVESTOR" AS DEFINED IN
REGULATION D UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT; OR MV) A "QUALIFIED
INSTITUTIONAL BUYER" AS DEFINED IN RULE 144A U^mK THE SECURITIES
ACT.

NOT EFFECTIVETRANSFER OF TfflS BOND OTHER THAN BY REGISfi^;

CITY OF FALLON,
GENERAL OBLIGATIO^^clITED TAX)

MEDIUM-T^fcoND
SERIE

No.

Interest Rate

_% per anniun

REGISTERED OWNE]|^|§^g|s

PRINCIPAL AMQ
' vA- ■ -

\ A

M^liiiitnritv Date Dated As of

, 2020

Ion, in theThe City of

County

DOLLARS

^1 amount specifi^iabove^^dhe maturity date specified above (unless called for earlier

of ChurlHtl and the State of Nevada (the "City," the

| f^eived, hereby acknowledges itself to be
le registered ov^er specified above, or registered assigns, the

redem^^^), and to pay in!

on

j^t there®|!n March 1 and September 1 of each year, commencing

>21, at the int^^t rate per annum specified above, until the principal is paid or

payment has 1^% provided^f or, if such payment date is not a business day, on the next

succeeding busineS^p^^^pas Bond shall bear interest from the most recent interest payment
date to which interest nSS'been paid or, if no interest has been paid, fiom the date of the initial

delivery of this Bond (the "Bond"). The principal of this Bond is payable upon presentation and

surrender hereof at the office of the City's paying agent for the Bond or any successor (the

"Paying Agent"), presently die City Clerk/Treasurer in Fallon, Nevada who is also now acting as

the City's Registrar for the Bond (the "Registrar"); provided, however, that such presentation

14



and surrender requirement shall only apply on the final maturity date of the Bond and shall not

apply to mandatory sinking fund redemption payments. Interest on this Bond will be paid on

each interest payment date (or, if such date is not a business day, on the next succeeding business

day) by check or draft mailed to the person in whose name this Bond or any predecessor bond is

registered (the "registered owner") in the registration records of the City maintained by die

Registrar, at the address appearing thereon, as of the close of busig^^iSm the 15th day of the
calendar month next preceding such interest payment date (the^i^piilar Record Date"). Any
such interest not so timely paid or duly provided for shall cp| hyjable to the person who

is the registered owner as of the close of business Regular Rd^^ Date and shall be

payable to the person who is the registered owner a^^he close of business^^^ pecial record
date for the payment of any defaulted interest (th^i^pecial Record Date"). Sucn^i^cial Record
Date shall be fixed by the Registrar whenever ni^pys becc^pu^iivailable for payni%it of the
defaulted interest, and notice of the Special Record Da1li^«l^(16e given to the registered owner

i^e means ̂ H^yment of interest may be used if

mutually agreed to by the registered own^^nd ml^^ing Agenuf^provided in the ordinance of

the City Coimcil of the Ch:^;|1he "Coimci! ithorizi^^ljssj^c^f the Bond and designated
in Section 1 thereof as^fe'^*^S()2'^^^ium-Te^^^^^'Ordina^^'^'duly adopted by the Coimcil
(the "Ordinance")^ml such paym^fe shall bd^pde in lawful money of the United States of
Amenca without deraihon for

^
Bond is a

jirjdce chargg^gf the Paying Agent or Registrar. If this

TÔ jtlnterest at the rate specified above shall.®f,®dd.upon 'b

contuffl^^be bom«feeby li^sthe principal hereof is discharged as provided in the Ordinance.

^^This Bond is is§^^, by t^^^ity upon its behalf and upon the credit thereof, for the
»5i..

purpol^ftl^nancing all or aM^ion di^ie cost of the Project as set forth in the Ordinance, under

the autbon"^^£ and in full col^liance with the Constitution and laws of the State, and pursuant

to the Ordinances^.;

The Bond, thereof and the interest thereon (the "Bond Requirements"),

shall be payable from moneys of the City legally available for the purpose of making such

payment and the full faith and credit of the City are hereby irrevocably pledged for making such

payment. Provision for the payment of the Bond shall be made as provided in NRS 350.093 and

350.095, provided, however, that ad valorem taxes levied for the purpose of paying the principal

of and interest on the Bond are subject to the limitations contained in the Constitution and the

15



statutes of the State, including, without limitation, the limitations on ad valorem taxes contained

in NRS 354.59811, 354.5913, 354.59815, 354.5982 and 361.453. The City is not authorized to

levy ad valorem taxes to pay the principal of or interest on the Bond exempt from the limitations

of any such statutes, but the City has covenanted in the Ordinance to make sufficient provision

annually in its budget to pay the Bond Requirements of the Bond, when due.

The City covenants and agrees with the Registered Owner of |ll3s,Sond and with each and

every person who may become the Registered Owner hereof thajf|i^31 keep and will perform all
of the covenants of the Ordinance.

The Bond is subject to [optional redemption an^|^pjai^tory simi^^imd redemption as
set forth in the Ordinance and the Certificate of the Q^i^reasurer.

No transfer of this Bond shall be valid

Lreasurer.

^Imade on the registration recd^^aintained

at the principal office of the Registrar by the re^itered o^^^ybr his or her attoj^ey duly

authorized in writing.

This Bond is not transferable o:

No recourse shall be had for the

able, exce^^^^et forth in the Bond Ordinance.

iflre Bond

thereto against any

Isirements of this Bond or for
te;-.
ipier instrument pertaining

or other agent of the City,

any claim based thereon pf p|^mise in reSplxt to t^^O^jn^ce or

l^pual ml^^er of the or any biSfe

past, present, or f^^p' either direcf'^or indirec^&irough the Coimcil or otherwise, whether by
virtue of any con^^^ji, statu^^f^de of la^^| by the enforcement of any penalty or
otherwise^flgi^ch liabu^^^^p^^^^^^^^^^^tance of this Bond and as a part of the

ice^®L|lly waived and fdeased.con^^^ffimn of i

sf^Jt is hereby certl^^ recii^^declared and warranted that all actions required to be taken

prior l^ge^^issuance hereof^^e beeii^^d and taken by the City; that the issuance of the Bond
iutive Director of the Department of Taxation of the State ofhas been ived by the

■A'

Nevada as reqm^lhy the >}J^350.087 to 350.095, inclusive, and that the principal of the Bond,
'W'twhen added to ot^^^^^lebtedness, does not exceed the limits on indebtedness of the City

provided in the Constitutfon and statutes of the State.
This Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit imder the Ordinance, or be valid or

obligatory for any purpose until the Registrar shall have manually signed the certificate of
authentication hereon.

16



[The City has designated the Bond as a "qualified tax-exempt obligation within the

meaning of Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City Council of the City of Fallon, Nevada, has caused

this Bond to be executed in the name and on behalf of the City with the manual or facsimile

signature of the Mayor, to be attested, signed and executed with a manual or facsimile signature

of the City Clerk, has caused a manual or facsimile impression of the seal of the City to be

affixed hereon, and has caused this Bond to be coimtersigned with the manual or facsimile

signature of the City Treasurer, all as of , 2020.

CITY OF FALLON, NEVADA,,

CManual or Facsimile Signatured

May( >r

(MANUAL OR FACSIMILE SEAL)

Attest:

(Manual or Facsimile Sienature

City Clerk .

^^^^^(End of Form of Bond)

Manual or Facsimile Signatured



(Form of Registrar's Certificate of Authentication for Bond)

Date of authentication

and registration

This is the Bond described in the within-mentioned Ordinance, and this Bond has been

duly registered on the registration records kept by the undersigned as Registrar for such Bond.

THE CITY OF FALLON TREASURER

as Registrar

CManual Signatured

,u Authorized Officer



(Form of Registration Panel)

The within Bond is registered in the office of the Registrar, in the name of the last
owner listed below, and the principal amount of the Bond and interest thereon shall be payable only
to such owner, all in accordance with the within-mentioned Ordinance.

Date of

Registration

Name of

Registered Owner

Signature of
Registrar



(Form of Prepayment Panel)

The following installments of principal (or portions thereof) of this Bond have been
prepaid by the City of Fallon, Nevada, in accordance with the terms of the within-mentioned
Ordinance.

Date of

Prenavment

Due Date of

Installments

(or portions
thereo

Principal
Amount Signature of



(Form of Assignment for Bond)

For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto the within

Bond and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints attorney, to

transfer the same on the records kept for registration of the within Bond, with full power of

substitution in the premises.

Dated:

Signature Guaranteed: "•

Name and address of transferee:
Social Security or other tax ^
identification number of v,
transferee:

NOTE: The signature to this Assignment must correspond witli the name as written on the face
of the within Bond in every particular, without alteration or enlargement or any change
whatsoever. Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an eligible guarantor institution as defined in 17
CFR §240.17Ad-15(a)(2). _

NOTICE: TRANSFER FEES MUST BE PAID TO THE REGISTRAR IN ORDER TO

TRANSFER OR EXCHANGE THIS BOND AS PROVIDED IN THE WITHIN-MENTIONED

ORDINANCE. I.



Section 22. Use of Bond Proceeds. A portion of the proceeds realized from the sale of

the Bond shall be used to effect the Refunding Project. The remaining proceeds realized from

the sale of the Bond shall be deposited in a special account hereby created and designated as the

"City of Fallen, Medium-Term, Series 2020, Acquisition Accoimt" (the "Acquisition Account")

to be held by the City. Moneys in the Acquisition Account shall be used solely to defray wholly

or in part the cost of the Project including, without limitation, as pti^i^ in NRS 350.516, all

S under Section 148 of thecosts of issuing the Bond, and the costs of rebates to the

Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Tax the Coimcil hereby

determines are necessary and desirable and pertain to ̂ "JProject. After^^Project is complete
and after all expenses have been paid or adequate therefor is mad^,^^suant to NRS

350.650, any imexpended balance of Bond pro(^^^or, unless otherwise requii^^y law, any
other moneys) remaining in the Acquisition Accol^^all be,4^0isited into the Me^an-Term
Debt Service Account, hereinafter created, to be used principal of and interest on the

Bond.

Section 23. moneys m^ y accoimt designated in this

yested in any investments

j

Permitted Tnvestm^ls. , __
\  t >vi

Ordinance, and not needed^fbrimmediate ii|||;^ay

permitted under the thel^^. For thS^Mpse of an5?^^i||i investment or reinvestment,
the securities sha

obligated to pay a fi>

leemed to m^re at the date on which the obligor is, on demand,
in di^^|,e,^of the wl^^ipf such obligations.

350.658, any gain from any

of any proceeds df the Bond shall be deposited promptly uponinve^Mlf and an^%|Byestih^6l

the^^ipt of such gainM^lny tirS^t^r from time to time into the Acquisition Account to defray,
m paif^^^ost of the Proj^jpr, if al[^uate provision has been made for the Project, into the
Medium-T^^JDebt Service ̂^count, hereinafter created, for the respective payment of the
principal of cr^^est on^^^Bond or any combination thereof. As provided in Section 28
hereof, any armuai'''^^ae^^axes for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Bond
levied after such deposits of any such investment or reinvestment gain, may be diminished to the

extent of the availability of such deposit for the payment of such principal or interest.

Section 25. Completion of Project. The City, with the proceeds derived from the sale

of the Bond, shall proceed to complete the Project without delay and with due diligence to the

best of the City's ability, as hereinabove provided.

22



Section 26. Prevention of Bond Default. Subject to the provisions of this Ordinance,

the Clerk/Treasurer shall use any Bond proceeds credited to the Acquisition Account, without

further order or warrant, to pay the Bond Requirements of the Bond as the same become due

whenever and to the extent moneys otherwise available therefor are insufficient for that purpose,

unless such Bond proceeds shall be needed to defray obligations accrued and to accrue tmder any
,  . . , . -A*,contracts then existing and pertammg to the Project. The Clerk/Tr^^pr shall promptly notify

the Council of any such use.

Section 27. Purchaser Not Responsible. The v| f^he Bond shall not be

dependent on nor be affected by the validity or regul^fy of any prdb^l^gs relating to the

Project, or any part thereof, or to the completion ofyflj^raject. The owner Bfr^v Bond shall in

no manner be responsible for the application or^^posal by the City or by any^^^Mte officers,
agents, and employees of the moneys derived or of any om^ranoneys

herein designated.

Section 28. General Tax Le^es.t^[^suant to N^i.^M§|).596, any sums coming due on
the Bond at any time when there are n61||p h^f^^e Med^^fTerm Debt Service Account
sufficient funds to pay sameisMl be promj^y. paid ̂ fl'^e put o^ffie Acquisition Account or
out of a general fund^j^ph^'^^ iiify'l^l^^t of any ̂ ^^^ds thatlil^Be available for such purpose,
including, withou^^itation, any j^^eds of (^^ral Taxes legally available therefor. For the
purpose of repayin^^^j5moneySj^fe|i^from ai^^^ch fund or funds (other than any moneys

replac^^^FThe^^^^^^^^ch Bond Requirements on other than a
^kfor^^^^urpose of creating funds for the payment of the Bond

available^

temt

^i®l|ments, there is^lM^by a separate account designated as the "City of Fallon,
Nevac^^^eral Obligatid^^imited^^) Medium-Term Bond, Series 2020, Medium-Term
Debt Serv^^^count" (the "^^ium-Term Debt Service Account"). Pursuant to NRS 350.592,
350.594, 350.^^^d 350.^^f except to the extent other funds are legally available therefor,
there shall be duly^^^^^i&iediately after the issuance of the Bond and annually thereafter,
until all of the Bond Requirements shall have been fully paid, satisfied and discharged, a General

Tax on all property, both real and personal, subject to taxation within the boundaries of the City,

including the net proceeds of mines, fully sufficient to reimburse such fund or funds for any such

amounts temporarily advanced to pay such initial installment of interest, and to pay the interest

on the Bond becoming due after such initial installment, and to pay and retire the Bond as they

23



thereafter become due at maturity as herein provided, after there are made due allowances for

probable delinquencies. The proceeds of such annual levies shall be duly credited to the

Medium-Term Debt Service Account for the payment of such Bond Requirements. In the

preparation of the annual budget or appropriation resolution or ordinance for the City, the

Council shall first make proper provisions through the levy of sufficient General Taxes for the

payment of the mterest on and the retirement of the principal of the ipWded indebtedness of the

City, including, without limitation, the Bond, subject to 'limitation imposed by NRS
354.59811, 354.59813, 354.59815, 354.5982 and 361.4^f^l^^tion 2, Art. 10, State

.  . 'HfrConstitution, and the amount of money necessary for t^.^urpose shall l^^'^first charge against
all such revenues received by the City.

Section 29. Priorities for Bond. As ]^^ied in NRS 361.463, in an^^;^ in which
the total General Taxes levied against the property"^l^fi City^^^i overlapping unifl^^thin the

iMoard of Examiners in any fiscal

boundaries of the City exceeds the liim|ations imposed'^^p^361.453, 354.59811, 354.59813
and 354.5982 or a lesser or greater by the

year, and it shall become necessary by r^n 4o reduced levies made by any and all

such units, the reductions sq fl̂ de shall GenJj^^i^ levi^^y the City for purposes
other than the payme^^Bbnd^^urement^^®lbnd andf

t^ thereon, General
m:

City including

bonded indebtedness of the

ses levied for the payment of such bonded

indebtedness and th^i^rest themi^fliiall always^&y a priority over General Taxes levied by

order to comply with the

limi^^fNl^f%^^3, l^|||ll, 354.59813^d 354.5982.
C^fe^Matioii^^Mi^evies. Such General Taxes shall be levied and collected in

the s

thereof fo?

^ ne time^'other taxes are levied and collected, and the proceeds

iond shall

anner and at th§^
.  .

^Kpt in the Medium-Term Debt Service Account, which shall be

used for no otn^^mpose^^i^^e payment of principal and interest, respectively, as the same
fall due. V

Section 31. I^ of General Fund. Any sums becoming due on the Bond at any time

when there are on hand from such General Taxes (and any other available moneys) insufficient

funds to pay the same shall be promptly paid when due from general funds on hand belonging to

the City, reimbursement to be made for such general funds in the amounts so advanced when the

General Taxes herein provided for have been collected, pursuant to NRS 350.596.

24



Section 32. Use of Other Funds. Nothing in this Ordinance prevents the City from

applying any funds (other than General Taxes) that may be available for that purpose to the

payment of the Bond Requirements as the same, respectively, mature, and upon such payments,

the levy or levies herein provided may thereupon to that extent be diminished, pursuant to NRS

350.598.

Section 33. Legislative Duties. In accordance with NRS

of the Council annually, at the time and in the manner ]

, it shall be the duty

"or levying other General

Taxes of the City, if such action shall be necessary to effectu^SK piAisions of this Ordinance,

to ratify and carry out the provisions hereof with referep%..to "the levy ̂ ^^llection of General
Taxes; and the Coimcil shall require the officers City to levy, exi collect such

General Taxes in the manner provided by law fia^pe purpose of creating funds ̂ ^e payment

of the principal of the Bond and the interest theredhi^.uch G^^'^Taxes, when coll^jfed shall

be kept for and applied only to the p^^ent of the prMS

hereinbefore specified.

Section 34.

knd the interest on the Bond as

Appropriation of Gfeer^^^^^feisi In acc^^qce with NRS 350.602, there
is hereby specially appro|^^ the proceW^ of su^^*^^^al T^I^To the payment of such
principal and interest$^^^' suc1^|^|»ropriatic^^^|f'not be 'i^aled nor the General Taxes

j. . "Wkpostponed or du^mhed (except herein olfewise expressly provided) imtil the Bond
Requirements of the haveb oily paid.

^covenants and agrees with each and every

ThSl^fflect shall be completed without delay; and
le make the principal and interest payments on the

oe, on the and in the manner specified according to the true intent and

gid, that:ownj

m

1

Bond at

meaning here(^#l\

Section 36. *4^Ta^@dvenant. The City covenants for the benefit of the owner of the

Bond that it will not tMtb any action or omit to take any action with respect to the Bond, the

proceeds thereof, any other funds of the City or any facilities financed or refinanced with the

proceeds of the Bond if such action or omission (i) would cause the interest on the Bond to lose

its exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes imder Section 103 of the

Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Tax Code"), or (ii) would cause interest on the

25



Bond to lose its exclusion from alternative minimum taxable income as defined in

Section 55(b)(2) of the Tax Code. The foregoing covenant shall remain in full force and effect

notwithstanding the payment in full or defeasance of the Bond until the date on which all

obligations of the City in fulfilling the above covenant imder the Tax Code have been met.

Section 37. Defeasance. When all Bond Requirements of the Bond have been duly

paid, the pledge and lien and all obligations hereunder as to tJ^^Bond shall thereby be
discharged and the Bond shall no longer be deemed to be Outstrnffiii^ within the meaning of this
Ordinance. There shall be deemed to be such due payment4^^*^^^^i0^ has placed in escrow

-mm

or in trust with a trust bank located within or without th&Etale, an amotilisufficient (including

the known minimum yield available for such pim^^,|from Federal Secu^^fjn which such
amount wholly or in part may be initially inves^ft§S meet all Bond RequiremeM^^ the Bond,
as the same become due to the final maturity of th^^id. T^( feral Securities snM^ecome

due before the respective times on which the proceedl^^^^shall be needed, in accordance
with a schedule established and agreedf^^^^etween the '"^fe^and the bank at the time of the
creation of the escrow or trust, or the

option of the holders thereof'to assure av^^ilit
teties shalNfe subject to redemption at the

,^®feded to^eet the schedule. For the

purposes of this SectiqlJ^'e

callable for rede:

Section 38

ieurities"

prior to theiipoaturities fe®

:her Ass alices. The Bi

purposej>p0:p3

iiefit o own

ration m full corfr^ianity

lude om^^^feral Securities which are not
»t at the option of the ovmer thereof.

IjWhen duly executed and delivered for the

^'a warranty by and on behalf of the City
the Bond thai the Bond has been issued for a valuable

to all

tion 39. Own^yights owner of the Bond issued hereunder shall be entitled

^ileges, rights'^^ remedies provided or permitted in the City Bond Law and the
Bond Act, and^^&erwise j^^ded or permitted by law or in equity or by other statutes, except
as otherwise proviaj^^^^p'but subject to the provisions herein concerning the pledge of and
the covenants and the Wier contractual provisions concerning the Pledged Revenues and the

proceeds of the Bond.

Section 40. Owners Enforcement. Nothing herein affects or impairs the right of any

owner of the Bond to enforce the payment of the Bond Requirements or the obligation of the

26



City to pay the Bond Requirements of the Bond to the owner thereof at the time and the place

expressed in the Bond.

Section 41. Amendment of Ordinance. This Ordinance may be amended or

supplemented by instruments adopted by the City, without receipt by the City of any additional

consideration, but with the written consent of the owner of the then Outstanding Bond at the time

of the adoption of the amendatory or supplemental instrument. No si^jlTfostrument shall permit:
A. A change in the maturity or in

principal or any installment thereof of any Outstanding

thereon;

interest thereon, without the written consent of 1h1

of redemption of the

fe. installment of interest

B. A reduction in the n®&^hl amount of the B&iid.or the rate of

ler of the then Outstandin^Mid: or

C. A reduction of the ̂ ^i^al ai^^^^br percentages on'^fherwise
affecting the description of the Bond or, the consent ot^ipj^f^er of which is required for any

modification or amendment; or

D. The modifilatioh^^^fe:^ other"^^^on which materially and

prejudicially affects the righl^or privilegesWfhe owoif^f%e.Bon(i^^hout the written consent

iond.of the owner of the th^t

Whenever^^jCity propose^|o amend "^^odify this Ordinance under the provisions
hereof, it shall cau^^^^ce of l^^pmposed am(^fcient to be mailed within 30 days to the

j  '^'"ibh o^si^i^ei,^fid. The notice shall briefly set forth the

|nt and shall state that a copy of the proposed amendatory

m^fflment is on file m mKMtnce 6@|le City Clerk for public inspection.
'Wkk "Milk

l%e p^

|never at any tm^ythin ̂^^ear from the date of such notice there shall be filed in
the office City Clerk a^^strument or instruments executed by the insurer of the Bond, if
any, or the ovS^^f the the^L^Sitstanding Bond, which instrument or instruments shall refer to
the proposed amehS|^^^|^^f\iment described in the notice and shall specifically consent to and
approve the adoption ofrSie instrument; thereupon, but not otherwise, the Council may adopt the
amendatory instrument and the instrument shall become effective.

Any Bond authenticated and delivered after the effective date of any action taken as

provided in this Section may bear a notation by endorsement or otherwise in form approved by

the City as to the action. If any Bond so authenticated and delivered shall bear such notation.

27



then upon demand of the owner of any Bond outstanding at such effective date and upon

presentation of his Bond, suitable notation shall be made on the Bond as to any such action. If

the City so determines, a new Bond so modified as in the opinion of the City to conform to such

action shall be prepared, registered and delivered and upon demand of the owner of any Bond

then outstanding, shall be exchanged without cost to the owner of the Bond then outstanding

upon surrender of such Bond. .K-'

Section 42. Ordinance Irrepealable. After the deliveiy^Ewfe Bond, the provisions of

the Bond Act and of this Ordinance shall be a part of the ii^^lSal

and the owners of the Bond issued hereunder.

Section 43. Delegated Powers. The of|i^^0f the City hereby

A

^^ntract between the City
 I

X"? A
and

directed to take all action necessary or appropria^^^feffectuate the provisions ofiife^rdinance.

including, without limiting the generality of the:

A. The printing of the Bon(^^dk^^
B. The exels such certfl^ ŝ as may be required by the

Purchaser relating to the signmg of the B|^, and idopj^ of the officials of the City,
the assessed valuation of lhe/;taxable pro^^, in an^^^%debte^&ss of the City, the rate of
General Taxes levied

the receipt of th(

income taxation,

connecti

the la^^Ke abs^ffi#f liti;

the completeil

pur

plet

'^^liin the ^Ifhe delivery of the Bond and

•tion of interest on the Bond from federal

information provided to the Purchaser in

#fhe Bond, and if it is in accordance with

pending or threatened, affecting the validity of the Bond or

/ of such information, the assembly and dissemination of

concer"'"

ble pro

e, the echase

ene .^gcuracy

financM^d other informa^iconcefliijte the City and the Bond.

|4. ReplacBfent of Registrar or Paving Agent. If the Registrar or Paying
Agent initiall/^^pinted j^^kder shall resign, or if the Clerk/Treasurer shall reasonably
determine that it^^^^^lt interests of the City to appoint a successor Registrar or Paying
Agent, the Clerk/Treas^er may, upon notice mailed to the owner of the Bond at his or her

address last shown on the registration records, appoint a successor Registrar or Paying Agent, or

both. No resignation or dismissal of the Registrar or Paying Agent may take effect imtil a

successor is appointed. It shall not be required that the same person or institution serve as both

28



Registrar and Paying Agent hereunder, but the City shall have the right to have the same person

or institution serve as both Registrar and Paying Agent.

Any successor by merger with the Registrar and Paying Agent is automatically appointed

as Registrar and Paying Agent hereunder without any further action of the Coimcil, as long as the

successor otherwise is qualified to act as Registrar and Paying Agent pursuant to this Section.

Any City officer, bank, trust company or national banking associatio^'^to which the Registrar

and/or Paying Agent or its successor may be converted, mej^ft^r with which it may be
consolidated, or to which it may sell or otherwise transfer aJ^^Mos^^ally all of its corporate
trust business shall be the successor of the Registrar and^ i'aying A^iftfiipder this Ordinance
with the same rights, powers, duties and obliga^^p%id subject to th^ll^^e restrictions,

limitations, and liabilities as its predecessor, alL^Wfeit

any further act on the part of any of the parS^^iereto, ac^mg herein to tH^ibontraty
notwithstanding.

Section 45. solutions and ordinances, or parts

shall not be construed
'""iVr

thereof, in conflict with this Ordinance, ̂^|berei

to revive any bylaw, order^ resolution or on

Section 46.

shall be recorded

by the signature of

shall be

; ThisO"

official reci^ai^ of the

yor shall

c

r and Effective

e, (^^^^e^of, h^^tofore repealed.
immedfi^|i' on its passage and adoption,

:ept for that purpose, shall be authenticated

■sted by the Clerk, and the seal of the City

ate. The Council has expressed in the

that^^ertains to the sale, issuance, or payment of the Bond, and
Idopted as if an emergency now exists. This Ordinance

pre

that th^^strument may ac"e

shall becOT^^ffective afler*^. publication by its title only, together with a statement that
- -.-S'typewritten cop^^f this C^^^nce are available for inspection by interested parties at the office

of the Clerk/Treas^^^^^^ublication to be made in a newspaper or newspapers published in
Churchill Coimty and which is of general circulation in the City and such pubUcation to be in
substantially the following form:

29



(Form of Publication of Adoption of Ordinance)

BILL NO.

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
FALLON, NEVADA, DESIGNATED AS THE "2020 MEDIUM-
TERM BOND ORDINANCE;" PROVIDING FOR THE
ISSUANCE BY THE CITY OF ITS GENERAL OBLIGATION
(LIMITED TAX) MEDIUM-TERM BOND, SERIES 2020;
PROVIDING COVENANTS, CONDITIONS, AND OTHER
DETAILS CONCERNING THE BOND, THE PROJECT AND
GENERAL TAX PROCEEDS; EU^TIFYING ACTION
PREVIOUSLY TAKEN AND PERTAINING TO THE
FOREGOING BY THE CITY AND ITS OFFICERS AND
EMPLOYEES; PROVIDING FOR ADOPTION AS IF AN
EMERGENCY EXISTS; AND PROVIDING MATTERS
RELATING THERETO.

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the above entitled Ordinance was proposed
by Coimcilman at the regular meeting of the City of Fallon City
Council held on December 7, 2020, and was passed and adopted at the regular meeting of the
City of Fallon City Council held on December 7, 2020, by the following vote of the City
Council:

Those Voting Aye:

Those Voting Nay: (|

Those Absent:

2020.

This Ordinahc^s^pTDe in full force and effect from and after the day of December,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City Council of the City of Fallon, Nevada has caused
this Ordinance to be published by title only.

DATED this December , 2020.

Ken Tedford



Attest:

Mayor

Sean Richardson

City Clerk/Treasurer

(End of Form of Publication of Adoption of Ordinance)



Section 48. Severability. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this

Ordinance shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or

unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall in no way effect any

remaining provisions of this Ordinance.

(SEAL)

Attest:

Mayor

City Clerk
City of Fallon, Nevada
This Ordinance shall be in force and effect from and ajler the /day of December, 2(i2Q|



STATE OF NEVADA )
)  ss.

COUNTY OF CHURCHILL )

L Sean Richardson, the duly chosen, qualified and acting City Clerk/Treasurer of City of
Fallon, Nevada (the "City") do hereby certify:

1. The foregoing pages are a true, perfect and a complete copy of an ordinance
adopted by the Council at a lawful meeting of the Council held on December 7, 2020, as recorded
in the official record book of the proceedings of the City kept in my office.

2. The members of the Council voted on the introduction of the ordinance on
December 7, 2020 as follows: ,

tion or the ordmanc

\
Those Voting Aye:

Those Voting Nay:

Those Absent:

Kelly Frost . y;
Karla Kent

James Richardson

3. The members of the Council voted on the final passage of the ordinance as set
forth above.

4. All members of the Council were given due and proper notice of the meeting.
Pursuant to NRS 241.020 and Governor Sisolak's Declaration of Emergency Directive 006 entered
on March 22, 2020, and extended by Emergency Directive 016 entered on April 29, 2020, by
Emergency Directive 018 entered on May 7, 2020, by Emergency Directive 021 entered on May
28, 2020, by Emergency Directive 026 entered on June 29, 2020 and by Emergency Directive 029
entered on July 31, 2020, written notice of the meeting was given not later than 9:00 a.m. on the
third working day before the meeting including in the notice the time, place, location, and agenda
of the meeting:

(a) By posting a copy of the notice at least three working days before
the meeting on the City's website; at the principal office of the Council, or if there is no principal
office, at the building in which the meeting is to be held; and on the State of Nevada public notice
website; and

(b) By mailing a copy of the notice to each person, if any, who has
requested notices of meetings of the Council in compliance with NRS 241.020(3)(b) by United
States Mail, or if feasible and agreed to by the requestor, by electronic mail.

5. Upon request, the Council provides at no charge, at least one copy of the agenda
for its public meetings, any proposed ordinance or regulation which will be discussed at the public
meeting, and any other supporting materials provided to the Council for an item on the agenda.



except for certain confidential materials and materials pertaining to elosed meetings, as provided
by law.

6. A copy of the notice so given of the meeting of the Council held on December
7, 2020 is attached to this certificate as Exhibit A.

7. A copy of the affidavit of publication of the Ordinance by title after its adoption is
attached to this certificate as Exhibit B. -

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this December 7, 2020.

Sean Richardson, City Clerk/Treasurer

<3
34



Exhibit A

(Attach Copy of Notice of December 7, 2020 Meeting)



Exhibit B

(Attach Affidavit of Publication of Adoption of Bond Ordinance)


